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Financial Highlights
B FERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
(in HK$°000) (F#7T) B —EB-—F +/(-)
Revenue A 8,062,702 7,195,982 +12.0%
Gross profit EF] 3,306,141 2,827,197 +16.9%
Operating profit KEER 1,429,342 1,277,972 +11.8%
Profit before income tax FRETISIR AR 1,431,108 1,274,447 +12.3%
Profit for the year FEEFF 1,268,203 1,092,242 +16.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of ZIN/NSTESY SN bl
the Company 1,264,675 1,083,774 +16.7%
Research and development costs (included in ~ FA3EE A (BEEITHRERR)
administrative expenses) (567,141) (512,119) +10.7%
As at 31 December
®w+=ZB=4+—H
2022 2021
(in HK$’000) (F#7T) e —E-—% +(-)
Total current assets MENEERE 8,173,014 7,790,106 +4.9%
Total assets BEMRE 9,490,329 8,821,278 +7.6%
Net current assets MEEEFE 5,663,508 5,526,563 +2.5%
Total equity e 48R 6,905,850 6,456,556 +7.0%
EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND
BRENEREKRE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—HILEE
2022 2021
Per Share (in HK$) S (B B —_T_—# +(-)
Earnings per share sRER
— Basic —&K 1.170 0.989 +18.3%
— Diluted —#5E 1.141 0.957 +19.2%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share EESREERFIAKRE 0.19 0.15 +26.7%




Financial Highlights
B FERE

FINANCIAL RATIOS

B EEE
2022 2021
Gross profit margin ETIES 41.0% 39.3%
Operating profit margin &R 17.7% 17.8%
Net profit margin RIS 15.7% 15.2%
Current ratio (times) TRENEE R (E) 3.3 3.4
Return on equity’ By 18.3% 16.8%
Return on assets? B E D3R 13.3% 12.3%
TURNOVER DAYS
HERE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Year FE “B-N\E BN _B°BF "B - _¥_C
Inventory? =& 146 164 183 175 194
Trade and bills receivables* i E ST ES 155 134 102 96 106
Trade and bills payables® N INES S 140 158 152 127 129
Cash conversion? REBie 161 140 133 144 17
Notes M 5E
1 Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 1 EROR=ATRFE ARG, ERE
equity as at year end 48 BB
2 Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total 2 BEERK=AQNBFEABERN FXKE
assets as at year end EMRE
3 Inventory turnover days = Average gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales 3 FEEERAY=FHEEERERE (FE
for the year/365 days) HEM A 365H)
4 Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average gross trade and bills 4 FEWBR A R FE I R 5B 88 B 8 = F I FEUNER
receivables balance/(Revenue for the year/365 days) AR EWEIEEGRERE (FEWA 365
H)
5 Trade and bills payables turnover days = Average trade and bills payables 5 FENERAREMNERESEO M =FHEMER
balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 days) MR ETEEGEE (FEHEMAE, 365H)
6 Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills 6 HREEMBHH=-"GFEEEHH +EBRERAK

receivables turnover days — Trade and bills payables turnover days

BUZEEERH - BOERAREMNRER
EA#H



Bank Gard Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment

RITFEFZEARXRHZHE

The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in
a typical electronic payment transaction

Cardholder
FEA

Merchant
5=

(e.g. hotels, restaurants, retailers )

(BB B )

Acquirer
U ER A
(e.g. First Data, Fiserv, Global Payments,
Hang Seng Bank)

Card Issuer

g i
(e.g. Bank of China, HSBC)
(B0 ERT T EE R T)

Card Association
R4EB

(e.g. Visa, MasterCard, China UnionPay)
(BYZ0Visa~MasterCard~HEI5RH)

“=)" E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals
solutions to acquirer directly or through distributor.

u»u

1:  Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an
E-payment Terminal.

2:  The E-payment Terminal sends transaction data to the acquirer.

3&4: The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid

through the network of card association.

5&6: The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and

grants authorisation.

7:  The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.

(PI%First Data-Fiserv~Global Payments-1§4:R1T)
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E-payment Terminals
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

ANDROID SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTIONS
REAGEBFZMBREE

General features: Powered by Android operating system and PCI PTS certified. Compact, portable, equipped with a large
high resolution touch screen and inbuilt camera. Support various kinds of payment options, including
bank card payments, Near Field Communication (“NFC") contactless and QR code payments.

—ARAEEL Mz S EERRIRIE WEBPCI PTSREESNEUNTG HEFR AR ASFEEREANERK
HeoxEEBAMAN BFFERIT R NFCIFBI R M5 (1%

A920Pro A800 A30 A3 ARG




Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EHS2E)

INTEGRATED ECR SOLUTIONS
—BRCE AR S

General Features: Powered by Android operating system, the all-in-one integrated solution delivers cost efficient and space
saving features to merchants. Stylish, large color touch screen, customer-facing display and an inbuilt
camera.

—RRAEEL U SEERFIRIEN—RCBRS R Er P BB RAMER - SNURH BB XF BEE

UNATTENDED SOLUTIONS
BB ARFS AR TS -

General features: Ideal for self-service sales points such as railway stations, petrol stations, parking lots and kiosks.
Products are certified with PCl PTS and have met required standards for anti-vandalism and
waterproofing. Support various kinds of payment options and connectivity options include 3G, 4G, WiFi
and Bluetooth.

—ARAEEL BRARXNBI DRI FHI5 - EE=EBBIHES S o ERERPCI PTSIRE » BN KR
oL REEBHI AN RIG 4G WIFIFEEF S B EZEE




Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

ANDROID SMART PAYPHONE & PAYTABLET SOLUTIONS
REBEFHRRFRZABRSG R

General Features:

—ARASRL -

Powered by Android operating system and PCI PTS certified. The M30 and M8 are the first-ever Android
smartphone and Android tablet with integrated payment module, which are perfect for retail and
hospitality industries. Support various kinds of payment options and allow merchants to browse the
web, read emails, check social media, make phone calls, take product pictures or record product videos,
etc.

M2 SEE R MRIRIE > WIS PCl PTS SREEoM30 1 M8 BRE B EEM I T EAN T S EF
MZa ¥k BETENERERA - ZEZIBIMNAN BROUERE - SRABH -TEHIE
B BE HREBR R ERRES-

CLASSIC E-PAYMENT SOLUTIONS
BREFIBRGE

General Features:

—ARATEL

$920

=

Masor o

Traditional Linux portfolio with PCI PTS certified, ranging from the D-Series, Q-Series, S-Series, and more.
Support bank card payments, NFC contactless payments, and more.

BfEPCI PTSEBBBIEMLinuxEdn  MEDRS QR I SRFHF o STIRIBTT R A NFOFEBEII
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EHS2E)

MAXSTORE

MAXSTORE, a cloud-based Software as a Service (“SaaS") platform,
connects payment service providers (“PSPs”), acquiring banks,
application developers and merchants, providing one-stop terminal
management and payment services.

Advanced Terminal Management
Industry-leading terminal management features designed to enable PSPs
and acquiring banks manage payment terminals in real time.

Powerful Payment Services Hub

Rich payment industry value-added tools, deliver payment, business
management and consumer data analysis for merchants across diverse
business segments.

8,000,000+ 8,500+

Connected terminals Applications
BAR R FERE

[ Tre—

icBes B!
F it 1Riif 2

MAXSTORE
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Corporate Information
~vEEH
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Corporate Information
~EEH
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Simplified Corporate Chart
YNSES RS

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
(Bermuda)

Pax Technology Limited
(HK)

100% 100% 87%

Kwang Woo
Information &

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(Indlia)

Wonder Pax

Technology Pax Technology Inc.

Communication
Co., Ltd.
(Korea)

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

(USA)

100% 95% 70%

Pax Computer
Technology

Pax Japan

Kabushiki Kaisha Pax Italia S.rl.

CSC Kalia S.r.l

((=1Y) (Italy)

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(PRC)

[NETED))
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Simplified Corporate Chart
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Directors and Senior Management
EXREREERE

As at 22 March 2023, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the directors (the “Director(s)”) and senior
management of PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 60, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the general manager of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Mr. Nie has over 25 years
of experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology
Limited (“Pax Technology”) at its founding in March 2000 as the vice
president until January 2001 and subsequently as the president prior
to his appointment as the chairman in June 2010. Mr. Nie previously
worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of
the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics
and obtained a master's degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from
Southeast University in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company in December 2010.

LU Jie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for
managing the business development, sales and marketing functions
of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 20 years of experience in sales and
marketing in the electronic payment industry and served a number of
management positions and executive role at Beijing Order Computer
Company (“Beijing Order”), a system integration company, from 1998
to 2001, including general manager of insurance department, general
manager of marketing department and vice president. He also worked
as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources of
the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences from 1986
to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively. Mr. Lu holds a bachelor’s
degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He obtained an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company in May
2013.

6 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREER

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 59, is an Executive Director of the Company and a
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible
for the Company’s risk management and treasury management and
overseeing operations of Pax Technology, of which he has been serving
as a director since April 2000. Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience
in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi
Sun Information Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL") from August
1997 to May 2005, a Hong Kong company engaging in general trading
and provision of consultancy services. HSITSL provided consultancy
services to Pax Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li has also been
the managing director of Hi Sun Limited since August 1999 and an
executive director of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, since June 2001. He has also
been appointed as an executive director of both Hi Sun Limited and Hi
Sun and certain of their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in
1999, he worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong,
including Beijing Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for
investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master's degree
in laws from the Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
independent non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (EBEBIEIZEIRERAF), Far East Horizon Limited (2287
EBFE/AT), Yida China Holdings Limited ((SETEZERERA
7)), New Huo Technology Holdings Limited (31 AR EZERABREA
7)) (formerly known as Huobi Technology Holdings Limited (A #&&}H%
ZRRABRAT)) and Peijia Medical Limited Clizs s8¢ B R AT, all
of which are companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). From December 2013 to June 2022,
Mr. Yip was also an independent non-executive director of Poly Culture
Group Corporation Limited (fRF)XXIEEBE D ERAE]), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in social sciences in 1987. He also
holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip
is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management
EXREREERE

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an
assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr.
Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards.
Her academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media, including the
Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc..
Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting firms and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in conducting research in the
areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US listed companies.
She also provides professional interpretation and analysis services for
investment funds on accounting standards and on listed companies’
financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from the Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994 and obtained a master’s
degree in Economics from the Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in
Accounting from the Stern School of Business, New York University in
2003.

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981.
Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has
practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as
Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

8 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Directors and Senior Management
EFEREREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 54, is the executive vice president, chairman and
legal representative of Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible
for the research and development management of the Company’s
smart electronic payment point-of-sale terminals (“E-payment
Terminals”) products and supply chain business and oversees the
finance of the operations in Shenzhen and construction matters. Mr.
Luo graduated from Wuhan University with a bachelor’s degree in
economic management. Mr. Luo has over 25 years of experience in
the card payment industry and over 20 years of experience in financial
administration and supply chain management. He joined Pax Technology
(Shenzhen) in December 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo
served various management positions in Beijing Order and Beijing Hi Sun
Electric Power Information Technology Limited.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary(ies)”).
He joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor's degree in Business
Administration in 2006 and obtained a master's degree in Business
Administration jointly from Columbia University, United States, London
Business School, United Kingdom and The University of Hong Kong
in 2021. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of financial and accounting
related experience. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate of The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung
worked for an international public accountancy firm and was involved
in a number of audit and assurance, capital market transaction and
advisory projects advising corporate clients including listed companies
and conglomerates worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX" or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group's revenue, profit for the year,
profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company and the
proposed final dividend have achieved record highs.

The Group’s revenue amounted to HK$8,062.7 million in 2022,
representing an increase of 12.0% compared to HK$7,196.0 million in
2021. The growth was mainly driven by the increase in sales of Android
payment terminals.

In 2022, profit for the year was HK$1,268.2 million, representing an
increase of 16.1% compared to HK$1,092.2 million in 2021. Profit for
the year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$1,264.7
million, representing an increase of 16.7% as compared to HK$1,083.8
million in 2021. Basic earnings per share for the year was HK$1.170
(2021: HK$0.989).

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.19
per ordinary share (2021: HK$0.15) for the year ended 31 December
2022, amounting to a total of approximately HK$205,165,000 (2021:
HK$162,855,000) (assuming there will be no change in the number
of shares in issue on or before the record date for determining the
entitlement of final dividend) subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

OUTLOOK

2022 was another financial year of stellar performance and excellent
achievements for the Group. The increasing popularity of PAX
terminals worldwide is evident for all to see. PAX has been dedicated
to the payment terminal industry for over 20 years, having a solid
international business foundation and strong financials, and a loyal
base of international customers in more than 120 countries. With a
persistent focus on product innovation in the field of payment terminal
technology, the Group is committed to providing high levels of product
security and quality, and always aims for excellence. PAX has now
become one of the leading providers of payment terminal solutions,
recognised by acquiring banks, payment processors, payment service
providers (“PSPs”) and independent sales organisations (“ISOs") around
the world.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

The payments sector itself continues to flourish, despite challenges
faced by the world economy such as inflation and interest rate hikes.
Under the new normal of consumption in the post-COVID time, the
rapid increase in merchants’ demand for omni-channel retailing, coupled
with the ongoing promotion of digitalisation and cashless policies by
governments worldwide, are fuelling demand for a new generation of
payment terminal solutions.

In 2022, PAX achieved remarkable performance globally. Group revenue
reached a new high of HK$8,062.7 million, with the strongest growth
coming from Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA") and United
States of America and Canada (“USCA") regions, where sales surged
respectively by 41.5% and 35.4%.

The Group's Android payment terminal solutions have been widely
adopted in many countries, resulting in a significant year-on-year sales
increase of 37.4% to HK$4,438.3 million. This affirms PAX's leading
position in the global market for new-generation electronic payment
terminal solutions.

In EMEA, sales were HK$2,661.8 million in 2022, representing a year-
on-year increase of 41.5%. In Europe, PAX continues to undergo large-
scale deployments of terminals (especially Android smart payment
terminal solutions) across the region, establishing itself as the preferred
payment terminal choice for leading acquiring banks and PSPs. The
United Kingdom, Italy and Germany have become the increasingly
important growth drivers for the Group, while France, Spain and Turkey
have all achieved significant growth.

The Middle East and Africa is of special significance to the Group.
Thanks to the successful collaboration with leading acquiring banks
and PSPs, PAX continues to achieve remarkable growth of market
share in the region. In Saudi Arabia, the largest economy of the Gulf
Cooperation Council (“GCC"), PAX achieved strong sales growth driven
by the government’s ongoing implementation of its “Vision 2030"
program and the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority’s (SAMA) openness
to innovative financial technology, creating more opportunities for
large scale deployments of PAX Android payment terminal solutions.
In Nigeria and South Africa, PAX continues to gain market share and
further expand its customer base of acquiring banks and PSPs.

In USCA, the Group further expanded its strong customer base with
strong sales of Android products, driving a 35.4% year-on-year
increase in regional sales, surpassing the HK$1 billion for the first
time. Recognition of the PAX brand has been going from strength to
strength in North America, as more payment processors and ISOs realise
the potential application values of innovative Android smart payment
terminal solutions. In the past three years, the high sales of the PAX
Android terminals recorded in North America have driven a year-on-
year sales growth of more than 30% in the region for three consecutive
years.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERE

In Latin America and the Commonwealth of Independent States
(“LACIS"), PAX has been ranked as the number one payment terminal
provider in Latin America for five consecutive years, according to the
international payment report, Nilson report. In key markets such as
Mexico, Chile and Argentina, the demand for PAX Android smart
payment terminal solutions continues to grow.

In the Asia Pacific region (“APAC"), the Group continued to expand
its presence in many markets, achieving a steady increase in sales. The
Group’s sales in India continued to grow, hitting record highs. The
sales of A-series products have taken up further share. PAX continued
to achieve brilliant results in Indonesia, with sales more than doubled.
Indonesia is expected to become another key growth driver for the
Asia Pacific region, driven by the Indonesian government’s upgrades
of its electronic payment infrastructure. In Singapore, PAX established
a subsidiary in 2021, serving not only as a regional hub to support
customers, but also a platform for further business expansion in
Southeast Asia.

Looking to the future, we expect the world’s development of cashless
and digital economies will continue to progress at a sustained pace,
as steered by advances in financial technology and local government
policies, delivering golden opportunities for the electronic payment
terminal industry in general, and for the Group in particular. We shall
continue to focus on investing significant resources in research and
development of Android payment terminal technology and related
cloud-based software platform, while at the same time strengthening
our international sales network and customer relationships, laying a
solid foundation for the long-term business development of PAX.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my heartfelt thanks to all the directors, management, as
well as our employees for their dedication. We would also extend our
gratitude and appreciation to our loyal customers, suppliers, business
partners and shareholders for their unwavering trust and support to the
Group over the years.

Nie Guoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREZA®RED

FINANCIAL REVIEW BA 75 El 8
The key financial figures are extracted as follows: B BHRBREROT
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—EIF %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET +/(-)
Revenue A 8,062,702 7,195,982 +12.0%
Gross profit EF 3,306,141 2,827,197 +16.9%
Other income HiA 64,915 96,315 -32.6%
Selling expenses HEMRS (821,605)  (716,234) +14.7%
Administrative expenses THER (1,121,022)  (958,185) +17.0%
Net reversal of impairment THMEEZRERE
losses/(impairment losses) on financial assets B[OIF%8, CREFEE) 3,091 (21,580) N/A Fi#EHA
Profit before income tax PRETISIR AT A 1,431,108 1,274,447 +12.3%
Income tax expense Frigfsz (162,905)  (182,205) -10.6%
Profit for the year FEHH 1,268,203 1,092,242 +16.1%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company ZxA B #F5 A A S EF 1,264,675 1,083,774 +16.7%
Research and development costs (included in e A (BIEEITH
administrative expenses) BREW) (567,141)  (512,119) +10.7%
As at 31 December
®W+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
g =BT 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET +/(-)
Total current assets TMENEEMRE 8,173,014 7,790,106 +4.9%
Total non-current assets ERBNEELBRE 1,317,315 1,031,172 +27.7%
Total assets EEEE 9,490,329 8,821,278 +7.6%
Total current liabilities BB EAEEE 2,509,506 2,263,543 +10.9%
Total non-current liabilities eI =Kk 74,973 101,179 -25.9%
Total liabilities =REFks 2,584,479 2,364,722 +9.3%
Net current assets REEESFE 5,663,508 5,526,563 +2.5%
Total equity R 48R 6,905,850 6,456,556 +7.0%
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BEREZAwREDH

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
s B2 —F +/(-)
PER SHARE (IN HK$) gh (BT)
Earnings per share for the profit attributable EN/NCIESTE DN 3
to the owners of the Company AN EREF]
— Basic — &K 1.170 0.989 +18.3%
— Diluted —#5E 1.141 0.957 +19.2%
Year ended 31 December
H#E+-_BA=1+—HILEE
2022 2021
—E°C BT —4F
FINANCIAL RATIOS M#EEEE
Gross profit margin EF=E 41.0% 39.3%
Net profit margin R 15.7% 15.2%
Revenue WA
i)  Sales by Geographical Region ) HHEHEEE
1,073,595 2021
2,992,477
793,145

HK$'000
TET

Total 485t

8,062,702

® LACIS

1,334,787
v

2,661,843

® EMEA
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Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
s BT —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET +/(-)
Latin America and the Commonwealth of I T &= MANIEHHEEF X

Independent States (“LACIS") (TLACIS ) 2,992,477 3,252,078 -8.0%
Europe, the Middle East and UM ~ R R IEM (TEMEA J)

Africa ("EMEA") 2,661,843 1,881,410 +41.5%
Asia Pacific Region (“APAC") K& (FTAPACY) 1,334,787 1,269,349 +5.2%
United States of America and EEEMEA (TUSCAY)

Canada ("USCA") 1,073,595 793,145 +35.4%
Total “ExE 8,062,702 7,195,982 +12.0%

Revenue increased by 12.0% to HK$8,062.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 from HK$7,196.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Most of the regions recorded growth,
especially in the EMEA and USCA regions. The increase was
mainly driven by the surging market demand for and thereby the
sales of Android smart payment terminals. The slight decrease in
revenue generated from the LACIS region was driven by the drop
in purchase orders, which is mainly attributed to the uncertainty in
Latin America’s economies in 2022.

WABRBEE_E_—F+_HA=+—H
IEFEMT7,196.08EETIEMI2.0%E
HE_Z T F+-A=+—HLEE
18,062 7AE BT KE DM E TR
WE 45 2EMEAKUSCAHE o Ht%%
FTEAR R EEEZNRIENTIEES
&%mbﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁo%émowma
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i)

16

Sales by Product Category

i) BERSEHESR

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E-C ET 5

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET +/(-)
Sales of E-payment Terminals products HEBTZNRKESR 7,836,695 7,015,249 +11.7%
Provision of services MRS 226,007 180,733 +25.1%
Total 4BZE 8,062,702 7,195,982 +12.0%

Sales of E-payment Terminals products

E-payment Terminals products include Android smart E-payment
solutions, unattended solutions, Android smart PayPhone and
PayTablet solutions, classic E-payment solutions and other
products.

Revenue from the sales of E-payment Terminals products increased
by 11.7% to HK$7,836.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 from HK$7,015.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The increase was mainly due to the increase in sales of
Android smart terminals across different regions during the year.

Provision of services

Services income mainly consists of the income generated from
the provision of maintenance and installation services and the
payment solutions services, e.g. SaaS (Software as a Service)
solutions.

Revenue from provision of services increased by 25.1% to
HK$226.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
HK$180.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
increase in revenue from provision of services was mainly due to
the growth in revenue generated from the Saa$S solutions.
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EEEZmAN R

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 41.0%,
representing an increase of 170 basis points as compared to 39.3%
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly driven
by the decrease in costs as a result of the depreciation of Renminbi
("RMB").

Other Income

Other income comprises primarily interest income, government subsidies
and value-added tax refunds. It decreased by 32.6% to HK$64.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from HK$96.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, mainly due to the decrease in interest
income and government subsidies.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 14.7% to HK$821.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 from HK$716.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase was mainly driven by the increase in sales
commission and transportation costs arising from the distribution of
goods.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 17.0% to HK$1,121.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from HK$958.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in employee benefit expenses of administrative and research
and development (“R&D") staff.

Net Reversal of Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group recognised net reversal of impairment losses on financial
assets of HK$3.1 million and net impairment losses on financial assets
of HK$21.6 million for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021
respectively. The amount recognised consisted of the expected credit
losses assessed on both individual and collective basis.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to the Owners of

the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year was HK$1,268.2 million,
representing an increase of 16.1% compared to HK$1,092.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company increased by 16.7% to HK$1,264.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 from HK$1,083.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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Other Event

Liquidation of Shanghai Kashuo

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2017 and the relevant disclosure in the Company's 2017
annual report concerning Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology
Company Limited (“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’s Republic of China. The court concluded the
bankruptcy proceedings of Shanghai Kashuo in March 2023. The
liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo is still underway. Should
Shanghai Kashuo liquidate, the Group is expected to recognise a
potential gain of up to approximately HK$60 million in reversal of its
existing liabilities.

Market Analysis and Industry Trends

The world’s payments sector continued to boom and grow in 2022,
showing great resilience in face of multiple challenges such as interest
rate hikes and higher inflation in the global economy. The development
of digital and cashless economies continues to be a key investment
priority for all countries, with fintech becoming an indispensable part
of such progress, providing increased efficiency, convenience and
accessibility to consumers, thereby achieving the in-depth development
of financial inclusion.

While electronic payment development varies from country to country,
electronic payments have emerged as the primary payment methods
among consumers worldwide. Over the past decades, we have been
paying less and less with cash and have seen the widespread usage
of physical bank cards. Today we are in the midst of a new era of
consumption, with more extensive and convenient ways to spend,
ranging from digital wallets to QR codes and wearable smart devices,
with even more payment innovation ahead. With the continual
advancement of payment technology, electronic payments will continue
to expand to a wider range of consumption aspects. According to the
market report, the global contactless payment market size is expected
to reach US$24.5 billion in 2027, with a compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) of 12.5% from 2021 to 2027.
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Over the past couple of decades, the PAX brand has steadily garnered
a reputation for being synonymous with superior innovation, high
quality and security internationally. PAX is committed to strengthening
the cooperation with banks and PSPs around the world. Together, we
are helping to lead the merchants they serve and their consumers into
a new era of smarter electronic payments. The Group has deployed
over 70 million payment terminals in more than 120 countries, and its
business scale places it at the forefront of the industry. According to
the October 2022 issue of the Nilson Report, the international payment
industry report, PAX has successfully become the second-largest global
payment terminal provider.

In 2022, PAX further cemented its position as one of the world’s
preferred payment terminal solutions providers, achieving record-high
revenue of HK$8,062.7 million. The Group's strongest performances
came from EMEA and USCA, with growth in these regions surging
respectively by 41.5% and 35.4%. The Group's profit continued to
increase, which was mainly attributed to the huge demand for PAX
Android smart payment terminals. During the year, profit for the year
surged by 16.1% to HK$1,268.2 million.

To remain competitive in today’s market, 1SOs, PSPs and acquiring
banks require more innovative payment and business solutions than
ever before. PAX Android smart payment terminal technology and SaaS
solutions — such as the market leading MAXSTORE platform — provide
them with the ability to combine core payment services with financial
and non-financial applications in a more flexible and cost-effective
way. PAX Android smart payment terminal solutions empower their
merchants to operate digitally, allowing them to process orders faster,
better analyse consumer behaviour, develop automated marketing
campaigns, manage inventory, and much more. It offers a centralised
and seamless way for merchants to navigate the increasingly complex
world of business. Payment terminals running Android-based operating
systems have become a new trend in the industry and are reshaping the
future of commerce.

In 2022, sales of PAX Android smart payment terminals experienced
strong growth, increasing by 37.4% year-on-year to HK$4,438.3 million
and representing over 50% of the Group’s total revenue. This impressive
rise highlights the Group's expertise and global leadership in the field
of Android payment terminal technology solutions. The Group also
continued to invest resources in strengthening the MAXSTORE platform.
As of 31 December 2022, the platform had over 8 million payment
terminals connected, offering merchants over 8,500 software and
business applications.
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Global Regional Analysis

LACIS

In Latin America and the Commonwealth of Independent States, the
development of digital infrastructures continues to progress steadily.
With its array of diversified product portfolios and a well-established
sales channel partner network, PAX continued to expand its presence.
According to the Nilson Report, PAX has been ranked as the largest
payment terminal provider in Latin America for five consecutive years.

In 2022, despite the challenges posed by the Brazilian unstable
economic environment, yet PAX continued to stay ahead of the curve.
The implementation of the “PIX" instant payment system by the Central
Bank of Brazil contributed to the advancement of the digitalisation
process, which is favourable for the long-term development of digital
payments in Brazil. PAX terminals fully support the PIX payment method.

While strengthening its market share in Brazil, PAX is expanding its
presence in neighbouring Latin American countries. In key markets such
as Mexico, Chile and Argentina, the Group stepped up cooperation
with PSPs and distributors to further expand application scenarios in
supermarkets, restaurants, parking lots and other fields. The demand for
PAX Android smart payment terminal solutions continues to grow.

EMEA

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa, PAX expanded its footprint
through large-scale deployments of Android smart payment terminals. In
2022, the Group continued its high-growth trend in the EMEA region,
with sales increased year-on-year by 41.5%, and reached the milestone
of HK$2.5 billion for the first time. The region’s impressive growth was
primarily driven by success in Europe and the Middle East.

Thanks to the Group’s ongoing investment in product innovation
tailored for the European market, PAX has become the preferred
provider of payment terminals to many leading acquiring banks and
PSPs. Our first-mover advantage in launching high-quality Android smart
payment terminals, such as the best-selling A920 and A920Pro models,
as well as the unattended IM30 terminal, has strengthened our market
share throughout Europe. The United Kingdom, Italy and Germany have
become increasingly important growth drivers for the Group, while
France, Spain and Turkey achieved a significant growth. With growing
demand for PAX solutions in Europe, the Group is well-positioned to
capture even more market share in the years to come.
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In the Middle East and Africa, PAX continued to focus resources on
capturing the region’s tremendous potential, deepening ties with
payment system integrators and the acquiring banks. As the largest
economy in the GCC region, Saudi Arabia’s “Vision 2030" program
for economic reform, and the Saudi Arabian Monetary Authority’s
(SAMA) openness to innovative technology finance, promoted the
rapid development of electronic payments in the region and created
huge opportunities for the Android payment terminal market. Saudi
merchants are accelerating the upgrade of legacy POS terminals models
to PAX smart payment terminal solutions. In 2022, PAX reported high
double-digit sales growth in Saudi Arabia. In South Africa and Nigeria,
the Group's new partnerships with major acquiring banks and PSPs have
borne fruit, further increasing market exposure of the PAX brand.

APAC

In the Asia Pacific region, the Group continued to expand its presence
in many markets, achieving a steady increase in sales. As the largest
provider of payment terminal solutions in India, PAX successfully
leveraged its strong partnerships with major acquiring banks and PSPs
to further increase market share. PAX's sales in India continued to grow
during the year, reaching record highs. Bolstered by the shift in demand
from legacy payment terminals to PAX Android smart payment terminal
solutions, the sales of A-series products continue to take up further
share, contributing to continuous success of the Group in India.

There is a strong demand in Japan for PAX Android products, especially
the A920, which has received very positive feedback from merchants.
This model continues to be certified and adopted by more and more
customers. With the easing of COVID restrictions in Japan, we expect
our A920 and unattended IM10 to propel another round of growth.

In 2022, the Group continued to strengthen its presence in Southeast
Asia, where sales growth was particularly impressive in Indonesia,
Singapore and Thailand. Driven by the government initiative of the
“Indonesia Payment System Blueprint 2025", the core payment
infrastructure has continued to improve. During the year, PAX achieved
good results in Indonesia and recorded a year-on-year more than
doubled sales. It is expected that Indonesia will become another key
growth driver for the Asia-Pacific business in the future.
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Since establishing a Singapore subsidiary in 2021, PAX has made
important breakthroughs with local financial institutions. The
government’s “Retail Industry Transformation Map 2025" is
encouraging retailers to adopt innovative business models, which is
expected to drive market demand for PAX Android smart payment
terminal solutions. The Group’s Singapore subsidiary now plays a
pivotal role in the Asia Pacific region, serving not only as a regional
hub to support customers, but also a platform for business expansion
in Southeast Asia, promoting PAX products to a wide range of sectors,
including transportation, self-service and retail.

USCA

Across the United States of America and Canada, PAX is increasingly
recognised by PSPs and ISOs as a market leader in the Android smart
payment terminal solutions field. With year-on-year sales growth of
more than 30% for the last three consecutive years, PAX has become
one of the fastest-growing payment terminal solutions providers in
North America. In 2022, PAX sales increased year-on-year by 35.4%,
and reached the milestone of HK$1 billion for the first time. Demand
for the Group’s Android smart series continued to show strong growth
momentum, with Android products sales in North America increasing by
more than 60% compared with the previous year.

North American consumers increasingly expect more convenience
when transacting, which is why contactless ordering and payment
methods, such as mobile wallets, online ordering, curbside pickup and
self-service ordering and checkout, have become the new normal.
PAX Android smart payment terminal solutions effectively integrate
diversified payment methods and provide business solutions that meet
the growing needs of North American businesses operating in the retail,
supermarket, hospitality and unattended segments.

During 2022, PAX entered into a new strategic partnership with one
of the largest banks in the United States to promote various Android
models to its nationwide merchant network, and cooperated with a
leading PSP to further expand the Group's market exposure.

According to a market report, the total digital payment transaction value
in the United States is expected to reach more than US$2 trillion in
2023, and the CAGR between 2023 and 2027 is expected to be 14.7%.
The future of the North American payment sector looks bright, and PAX
will continue to work closely with more regional payment processors,
PSPs and ISOs to strengthen the deployment of the PAX Android smart
terminals in North America.
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Management Strategy

Looking to 2023, PAX will remain steadfast in its commitment to
advancing payment acceptance technology solutions, with a strong
focus on product innovation, quality and security. The Group will
continue to roll out a wide range of state-of-the-art, secure electronic
payment terminals and related software solutions which will help our
global customers leverage the opportunities of increasing diversified
payment scenarios.

Focus on research and development of Android smart
payment terminals and Saas$ solutions to create

differentiated advantages

For banks and PSPs to provide better services to their merchants,
continuous innovation in payments and merchant services is critical.
This is why PAX is dedicated to research and development of its
Android product portfolio and the MAXSTORE platform, delivering a
value proposition which goes well beyond payments, to help small and
medium-sized merchants to embrace advanced payment technology,
and support multiple in-store payment acceptances methods for
retailers.

The PAX product portfolio supports many use cases: portable wireless
terminals for pay at table in restaurants; mobile terminals with
advanced camera functionalities for ticketing or inventory lookup;
desktop terminals with multiple connectivity options for traditional
retail environments; unattended products for integration with vending
and parking machines; or standalone self-service kiosks with integrated
payment acceptance.

As part of the Group’s strategy to maximise the value of its core Android
payment terminals, PAX will continue to increase investment in the
cloud-based SaaS solutions, explore cooperation with more acquirers
banks and providers of value-added software applications, with an aim
to jointly create a powerful SaaS ecosystem.

Strengthen the global sales network to expand PAX

presence in the international market

As the leading provider of electronic payment terminal solutions, PAX
has a large and powerful partner network all over the world, which is
the cornerstone for the Group's success in the international market. PAX
places high importance on relationships with partners, and will continue
to invest significant resources to strengthen its ties with partners, and
expand PAX products and solutions to wider market segments and
customer bases.
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PAX has set clear goals for its development and is determined to explore
potential markets across Southeast Asia, the Middle East and Africa.
In the future, PAX will cooperate with more acquiring banks, PSPs and
distribution partners to meet the huge opportunities in the international
payment terminal market. In addition, the Group will also examine
the current investment situation, explore mergers and acquisitions
and further investigate any investments that could have synergistic
and complimentary benefits, bolstering the PAX distribution network
and payments-based cutting-edge technology, with a view to further
strengthening the Group’s leading global market position.

Enhance supply chain management and flexibility to capture

future market opportunities

With the growth of the global business of the Group, we are
determined to strengthen the Group’s supply chain management
capabilities by building stronger, closer partnerships with component
suppliers, assembly contractors and other key stakeholders in the supply
chain.

Amid the supply chain disruptions in many sectors in the recent years,
the Group has successfully weathered these challenges thanks to its
expertise in the supply chain field, and has actively monitored and
increased its procurement plan of components throughout the year.

In order to support future demand for payment terminal growth and its
own long-term strategic development, PAX has started construction of
an industrial park in Zhongkai High-tech Zone, Huizhou City, China. It is
expected to be completed by the end of 2023 at the earliest. The new
industrial park will further enhance the Group’s global competitiveness
and lay a foundation for future business growth.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the years of 2022 and 2021, the main source of funding to
the Group was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the
Group's usual course of business. Certain financial data is summarised as
follows:

b

MBEERMBER
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TRBH/EEE-—RBEIHPEE Fﬁ%i
BYWA - BT MBI T

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—=E-C B —F
Current ratio (times) TMENELE (%) 3.3 3.4
Quick ratio (times) EEEEE (%) 2.2 2.5

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$3,160.2 million (2021: HK$3,533.0 million) and no borrowing
(2021: same). As at 31 December 2022, the Group reported net current
assets of HK$5,663.5 million (2021: HK$5,526.6 million). For the year
ended 31 December 2022, net cash generated from operating activities
was HK$648.5 million (2021: HK$347.7 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group had no borrowing, therefore the gearing ratio is not
applicable (2021: same).

Capital Structure and Details of Charges
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant borrowing and
banking facility (2021: same) and no charge on any assets (2021: same).
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As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

K%@E’Jﬁi&ﬁ%%%% E'JJ—X—FZJ_'JE““%
5t{E :

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=4+—8H
2022 2021
—EIfF T —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 1,465,309 2,455,509
United States dollar (“US$") E7T 1,055,539 741,970
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") BIT 400,391 200,190
European dollar (“EUR") BRIT 129,471 84,944
Japanese Yen (“JPY") Hot 52,771 10,508
Indian Rupee (“INR") Etb 45,527 27,291
Others H1h 11,230 12,542
3,160,238 3,532,954

Significant Investment
The Group had no significant investment held as at 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
same).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, US$, HK$, EUR and INR. The majority of
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, US$, HK$, EUR and INR
and there are no significant assets and liabilities that are denominated in
other currencies. Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements
or purchased instruments to hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any
material fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

The management considers the foreign exchange risk with respect
to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the
functional currency of HK$ or US$. The Group manages foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2022
was 1,712 (2021: 1,654). The following table shows a breakdown of
employees of the Group by functions as at 31 December 2022 and
2021:
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HARR
AERR-_F-_"_F+RB=+t—HLEE
PEARABEB(CE_—F 8 -

ANE R R G ER

A _E -+ _B=+—H AEEESER
HA1LTNRA(CEZ—F:1,654A) c FERET
N B _ER_E_—F+_-_HB=+—H
RIFBES PN EREEHE

As at 31 December

®W+=ZBA=+—H

2022 2021
B “BE_—fF
Management BIRE 13 13
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HERERRBUNTIGEE 355 356
Research and development o 22 920 855
Quality assurance = 72 76
Administration and human resources THERANER 68 58
Accounting g5t 38 36
Production, procurement and inventory control YE-RERGEEES 246 260
1,712 1,654

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive ZAEBBEHFMTBEBE2EAEARS|H-EE

and competitive. Directors are entitled to a fixed director’s fee,
discretionary bonus and other benefits, which are determined with
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company,
market practice and conditions as well as the Group's corporate goals
and objectives in accordance with the remuneration policy of the
Company. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly income
plus discretionary annual performance related bonuses. Share options
are granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group as long-
term incentives to reward their contributions under the share option
scheme of the Company, details of which are set out in the Report of
the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected employees to attend
external training courses that suit the needs of the Group’s business.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures are
used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP measures are
not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative to operating
income as an indicator of the operating performance of the Group or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the overall
understanding of the Group current financial performance. Additionally because
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the
Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our
financial reporting.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency
and accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’'s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE CULTURE

As a leading E-payment Terminals solutions provider and one of the
most active global players, the Group instils a culture that respects and
promotes innovation, sustainability, good corporate governance and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Board sets the tone
and shapes the corporate culture of the Company, which is underpinned
by the Group's vision of sustainable growth, and the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group.
The Board plays a leading role in defining the purpose, values and
strategic direction of the Group and in fostering a culture that is forward
looking, change embracing and competitiveness focused. The desired
culture is developed and reflected consistently in the operating practices
of the Group, workplace policies and practices as well as relations
with stakeholders. Board oversight of culture encompasses a range
of measures and tools over time, including workforce engagement,
employee retention and training, stringent financial reporting, effective
and accessible whistleblowing framework, legal and regulatory
compliance (including compliance with the employee’s code of conduct
and corporate governance policies of the Group), as well as staff safety,
wellbeing and support. Taking into account the corporate culture in a
range of contexts, the Board considers that the culture and the purpose,
value and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices,
the Company has applied the Principles and complied with all applicable
Code Provisions for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance manual to ensure
that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure requirements.
Directors and senior management are provided with appropriate
ongoing training, continuing professional development for regular
updates of the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to their
duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating the securities
transaction of Directors and executive officers named in this annual
report (“Securities Transaction Code"”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors, whereas each of them
has confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and Securities Transaction Code throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code regulating the Directors, senior
management and employees, who because of his/her office or
employment is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, in respect of their transactions of securities of
the Company.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters which
include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary(ies), with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as
to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were
given to the senior management and subject to periodic review to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material transactions

and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.
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Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members, as equal board members, upholds the effective exercise of
independent judgment of the Board.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

An updated list of Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationship, if
any, among members of the Board, in particular, between the Chairman
and the Chief Executive, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures, subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at annual general
meeting and the key terms and conditions of their appointment are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 23 May 2022
for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2022 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li
Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the respective service contracts.
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Training for Directors and Company Secretaries

Newly appointed Directors and Company Secretaries receive induction
on the occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the Group’s various governance and
internal control policies. The Company also, at its expense, arranges and
provides suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors in
the form of seminar and provision of training materials, with emphasis
on directors’ duties and responsibilities. A summary of training received
by the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 according to
the records as provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

EFRARWEE
MEREERADWENRELZETHERHE
NE EEREETHREARBDEFTREF &
EETHRERBRZR RERERUKRETE
EEEEARMNIBEZEBRR TABE UL
ARBTFEEM LB RRNEFTNAE T
BENSEULHRBMEERE -

ARBEBBEREFTSREATEE R UHE
BRREMEENNHRKE FRABDECERR
TSN EREHRBIENAESTZHKREY
REEI TBYEELTRATDESNAEG
BEMEE RIFEEFRUNCE EFNE
EZ__HF+_AB=T—HLEFEEEHN
EIIBEWT

Training on regulatory updates,
corporate governance, inside
information or other

relevant topics
EREM - EEER - ARHEH

EEH4 H 48R3 £ @53
Executive Directors HITES

Nie Guoming & [ B8 v
Lu Jie B AN v
Li Wenijin FTEXE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIJERITES

Yip Wai Ming EEH v
Wu Min 2 & v
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X EE v

During the year, the Company Secretaries received no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Group against losses or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from
or incidental to execution of their duties. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as deemed appropriate by
the Board.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, four regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for, among others, reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, the final results for the year ended
31 December 2021, results for the three months ended 31 March 2022,
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and results for
the nine months ended 30 September 2022, and considering, reviewing
and/or approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc Board meetings held
from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board
in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings and general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

EFETREREFTLERBR
FRANESTEBRTHOREREFETTH
W (HpaE) SERAMEMBREERER &
BE_ZT_—F+-A=+t—HLFENZE
FEBE HE_T__F=A=+—HL=E
ANEE - BE_T - _F/xA=+THILNE
BT HEERBE_TE__FAAB=+H
EAEANES UKEE K RHE
2N ) BB RBS K BUR o

BEFERBE_ST__F+-RB=+—HL
FEHEONEERZEEEFEER (FTEEH
fth B ER1T E’JTEHH%$EED%&$EB‘E¢¥
EATANESEHNENENAEMEER)
EEEERRRARGHHFELERIIINT 2

Attendance/Number of Meetings”

SRR/ BORE

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings* Meeting

BRZEE RRZEE FWZEE ERESE
Name of Directors EEe EE L] ] EER BEXE
Nie Guoming =EHR NARER  NATBRE  NAFER 4/4 11
Lu Jie BEA NARER  NATER  NATER 4/4 17
Li Wenjin FNE N/A B F 212 11 444 11
Yip Wai Ming BEH 22 22 0 4/4 10
Wu Min B8 212 212 17 4/4 1”71
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles N B 22 NATBA N/A 48 4/4 1

A

Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through other
means of video conference in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”).

* Pursuant to the Bye-laws, not all Directors were required to attend the
rest of the Board meetings which mainly dealt with the consideration and
approval of ordinary business transactions.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at
least fourteen days in advance and relevant agenda and accompanying
board papers have been disseminated in full to the Directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Reasonable notice, as permitted
by the Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed, has
been given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary(ies), as delegated by the Chairman, are
responsible for preparing the agendas of board meetings, taking into
account any matters the Directors may propose to include, ensuring that
all Directors are given opportunity to include matters in the agendas
and approving the agendas. In order to enable the Directors to make
informed decision, agendas and accompanying board papers, together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors or all committees members at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised
of the latest developments and/or financial position of the Company.
The Board and the individual Directors also have independent access to
the senior management to make further enquires or when they require
further information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior
management.

The Company Secretary(ies) attended all regular Board meetings and,
when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on,
among others, statutory compliance, corporate governance matters and
to ensure that the Company's policies and procedures were properly
followed.

The Company Secretary(ies) is responsible for preparing and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
recorded sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed, if any. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting. The final version
is kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting, at
which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest
in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any of their close
associates having material interests in the transaction or matter shall
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving such transactions.

34 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EXCERERKER
EFCeERERKERZECRLE S
o

EREECEEASERI N EERHA
+THOXBLEREZ - RIBARMAILERE
RAAAHZXNBITREE  FREEREZEEE RN
B EREXMHEERE —RAEREA
REFHEES HWESEREECT T H—
R FEEBEH -

AEAMERTRELTEERBEFTTEER
BoTOREFRIFHANEANEFTE BRE
REFEARIRUBNFIRINARERL
HEFR-REESS Wﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%?i’
ZREMEENEZEXHERMAGE TE

RASREN ZEVEEECTEEREETER
WBET=ZRAINE2REFTNEREETNE
RLEBEFANBARBDENERR A BN
MoBRGRENESFTAIETEESHRER
BIFE—PEH NEHERE-TERE
FeREEEERERE 2

NEAMEHFEFEEREZTEREMANESE
EREFEHMEFTERREETEH T
(Hh 8 FETE- ﬁ¥§m$ﬂkhu
RoUHRAADNEIREREFBEZ

T_T—O

AEAMNEEERBTEESTTTENEED
CHRIERLBUMUFTE -ERLHTDF
BT E EE IR EARE  RENERE
RFFRZENRBER WH) - ERLHDR
RERERREEREAERRRN TEEE
RO FEER R ERSHARDWERFIL
AIHEEER -

RERTEFEER EASIRETERINE
FNaBERNERXSRNEE ALKHERNA
ANBEEFEEE MRS EERMEBHE
EU?%J;E%;VTT%%E&F\_A§§> Bz I o AT S

RENEERBEAETHNEFTARFZE
BHMBAACERLEZS XN EZRERR
R AEST AEEANBA -



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRS

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and responsibilities of Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie
respectively as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the “CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The
clear division of the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of business ensures a balanced power and authority such
that no concentration of power should vest in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the
assistance and support of the Company Secretary(ies) and the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive in a timely manner adequate information, which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to assure that the Board
acts in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes
a culture to facilitate effective contribution and encourages the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient discussion
of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also responsible for
developing strategic plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation
in board meetings, offer independent judgment on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining the
Company’'s performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
and monitoring performance reporting, the independent non-executive
Directors has become an integral part of the healthy growth of the
Company.
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During the year, the independent non-executive Directors attended the
annual general meeting of the Company, details of which are set out
on page 33, enabling them to develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, was appointed
for a contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly
basis and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws. Such term shall
be terminated: (i) by either party giving the other not less than two
months’ written notice; (ii) forthwith without compensation, on ground
of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or negligence of such
Director, or (iii) any failure of passing a resolution by the shareholders to
be re-elected as a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing at least one-third of the Board and
with at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive Directors are considered independent
having regard to the independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company's affairs.
Each Board committee was established with defined written terms
of reference setting out its authorities and duties and requiring the
Board Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by applicable legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of
reference of the Board committees are made available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange's websites and hard copies of the same are
available to the shareholders upon request.
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Each Board committee consists of a majority of independent non-
executive Directors and is respectively chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. Chairman and members of each Board committee as
at the date of this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

2YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

SMAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
MWU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
2YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*LI Wenjin

s Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including at least one member possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others, the
followings:

(@)  to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies and
practices and consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (or person occupying the
same position) or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company's relationship with the external auditor
with reference to its work performed, fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and, if appropriate, removal of
external auditor;
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(©) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems, including
but not limited to adequacy of resources available to its respective
functions, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes; and

(d) to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider
effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis
and emergency situations and approve major decisions affecting
the Group's risk profile or exposure.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted in accordance with
the CG Code, the "Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role
of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization of
Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 to review the half-yearly and annual financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, the auditor’s independence and objectivity, as well as the
Company's environmental, social and governance (“ESG") performance
and reporting. Full minutes of the meetings are duly kept by the
Company Secretary(ies) and draft and final versions of the same have
been sent to all committee members for comment and records, within
reasonable time afterwards in accordance with the relevant Code
Provisions. The Audit Committee also met with the Company’s auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, twice during the year and recommended
its re-appointment as the Company’s external auditor to the Board,
which has taken no different view in respect of the Audit Committee's
recommendation.

During the year, the Board has also, with the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, established anti-corruption and whistleblowing
policies and systems, which are conducive to setting a healthy corporate
culture and good corporate governance practices.

At the end of 2022 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

38 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(0 BRARDYBRSFIE -BZRERFE
EENPHEZE ABEERERER
HERSRM KA HREEE
TRIREEGERHERBTHEIRMESR
TEERERKRIEINE ; K

(d) FHREHNAEBHNERE TRERE
ERECHAERBERENRREFZ
BB > LUR HE O 52 B A 5 1B R B 4B e BY
EBRR-

EREBEEXEATR ERESFFEBEEREZS
SHBRMEZESME RN (RAMB TR
RIRIE 2 E R & SRIZ AN G 17 14 TR (F
FB)RAERBEAMAERLN AT EFLES
E155/ 1 MR REMINAEZEZEGHRER
EENEERELE -

BREZEEBENRBE_E__F+_-_B=+—
ALFEESSRETMRER BERTHRFEEY
BEERRS MBRBRARGRERF NEE
EREBREESE ABEZBAENARIE
ZEEMHBIIMERERE  UkERFTRIR
B HEhEA(MRE - HERER)RER
WE-RBEMBERTARY BN EHZCEA
NEMEZERE BEERTHBNERKRRRZ
RERERAERBRNELIIEZEENE
P RECik e BREB BTN FRERQT %
MBI KBS SN EHPAM RS E > I H
EXCREERINEA/S T AT IEZE
o MEFENERERETELEERZEGT

BRROk-

FR ABEZZEENEZT EFETER
YREFREBERBERAR E b AR PRI
EZhEEXERRFZEXRERER

B "FFRERNARSA LEAR
HREHEARDRFTEEELCENENESE
BEARENEHFHER -

ARBBE_ZT__F+_A=+—HILHF
ENE2FXECKHELEZETER-



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRS

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 and comprises two independent non-executive
Directors (one of whom being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and one executive Director. Its terms of reference was
prepared and adopted with reference to the CG Code and its principal
duties include, among others, the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships based on the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business requirements of
the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment agency may also be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process when necessary. The Company has
always maintained diversified selection criteria in its hiring process
as measurable objectives, taking into account a wide range of
attributes including age, gender, educational background, professional
experience, industry skills, expertise and experience and such policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) was reduced to writing in 2014. To facilitate
sustainable and balanced development of the Company, the Nomination
Committee regularly reviews the Board Diversity Policy from nomination
to appointment, with an objective to achieve a diversified spectrum
of Directors with varying perspectives, educational background and
expertise, ranging from in-depth knowhow in the payment industry,
sales and marketing talents to professional qualifications in the legal
and accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in
his respective field of expertise for at least 10 to 30 years. Regardless
of their background or experience, the Directors commonly share and
acquire the talent and competence to drive the development of the
industry, being the ultimate attributes that the Nomination Committee
will uphold and carry through in the talent selection process.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board consists of five male members and
one female member, and the ratio of male to female in the workforce
was approximately 66%/34%. The Nomination Committee considered
that the Board and the workforce was sufficiently diverse in terms
of gender. The Board and the Nomination Committee continue to
search for potential candidates for the sake of developing a pipeline
of potential successors to the board to enhance gender diversity. The
Board targets to maintain the Board with female representation and
is committed to further enhancing gender diversity of the Board and
the workforce as and when suitable candidates are identified. The
Company has also reviewed the membership, structure and composition
of the Board, and is of the opinion that the structure of the Board is
reasonable, and the experiences and skills of the directors in various
aspects and fields can enable our Company to maintain a high standard
of operation.
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Appointment of Directors is based on objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board, and decisions of the
Nomination Committee are based on the merits and contribution of the
selected candidates.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure
of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter
alia, his/her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant industry experience, character and integrity and whether he/
she can contribute to the diversity of the Board underpinned in the
Board Diversity Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a
Director is summarised as follows:—

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member
of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board's consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant Code
Provisions and the Listing Rules;

- where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of matters
under applicable Code Provision(s);

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing
the candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

- convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or
re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has also adopted a board
independence evaluation mechanism (the “Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism”), which sets out the procedure and a list of
factors to be considered for assessment of the independence of the
Directors, so as to ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held two meeting during the year ended
31 December 2022 to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) consider and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment and re-election
of the retiring Directors; (iv) review and recommend the continuing
adoption of the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy; (v) review
and recommend the adoption of the Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism; and (vi) review the implementation and effectiveness of
the Board Diversity Policy and the Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Mr. Li Wenjin, an executive Director and
Mr. Yip Wai Ming, an independent non-executive Director, shall retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM. According to Code Provision B.2.3, any further appointment of
independent non-executive director serving more than 9 years should be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. As Mr.
Yip Wai Ming has served the Company as an independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years, a separate resolution shall be proposed
for his re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM").

Upon the annual review of the Board’s composition taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee formed the view
that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company and the
independent non-executive Directors remain independent. Taking into
account the aforesaid and each of the retiring Directors’ confirmation
to give sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs
subsequent to the re-appointment, the Nomination Committee made
a recommendation to the Board for considering the standing for re-
election at the AGM of the aforesaid retiring Directors, namely Mr.
Li Wenjin and Mr. Yip Wai Ming. The Board, taking into account the
recommendation and other factors as considered relevant, has decided
to further recommend Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Yip Wai Ming to stand for
re-election at the AGM.

In addition, Mr. Fok Wai Shun, Wilson was nominated as a candidate for
independent non-executive Director by the Nomination Committee, and
the appointment of Mr. Fok Wai Shun, Wilson is subject to the approval
by the shareholders at the AGM.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched in April 2023 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election and the
candidate proposed for appointment and election as an independent
non-executive Director.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. Its terms of reference was prepared and adopted
with reference to the CG Code and its primary objectives and duties
include making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure, remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management and compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which is determined with reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s
corporate goals and objectives.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters, including without limitation
benefits in kind, pension rights and the compensation arrangements
relating to their termination and dismissal. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the
human resources data and proposing the remuneration structure and
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consider and consult the Chairman and/or the Board
about these proposals. The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2022 to review and recommend
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management,
review the operation and maintenance of the share option scheme of
the Company including, among others, the eligible participants under
the scheme and movements in the share options, establish a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and to assess
the performance of the executive Directors and approve the terms of
their respective service contracts.

The remuneration payable to the members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:
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Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands S 4R B AE
HK$6,000,000 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,000/ 75 56,500,000 71 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 5% 7,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 10 and 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which includes, among others, formulating and reviewing the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management, the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, formulating
and reviewing the code of conduct, guidelines and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors, monitoring their compliance of
the same and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and
relevant disclosure obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 73 to 83.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board as a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and acknowledges its overall responsibility for
reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and assets of the Group. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least
annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes, budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, as well as the
Company’s environmental, social and governance performance and
reporting, and is kept apprised of significant risks including but not
limited to ESG risks that may impact the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-
up approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee identifies
the risks of the Group including but not limited to ESG risks, and
decides on the respective risk levels and the Board shall assess and
determine the nature and extent of the risks that are acceptable
to the Group when achieving its strategic objectives. In particular,
material ESG risks are effectively identified and evaluated by the Audit
Committee through an independent third-party consultant. Taking
into consideration the risk response, i.e. the necessary risk mitigating
measures, the relevant departments and business units shall be assigned
to implement the risk management solutions in accordance with their
respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risk together with
the risk response will be recorded at the risk register and subject to the
Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment and maintenance of a risk
register to keep track of and record identified risks including but not
limited to ESG risks, the assessment and evaluation of such risks, the
development and continuous update of responsive procedures, and
the ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure their
effectiveness.
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An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. Risks are classified by (i) likelihood of
occurrence as Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3) and (ii) resulting
impact as Minor (1), Moderate (2) and Significant (3). The risk degrees
determine the level of management’s attention and risk treatment effort
required.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, the Board
considers that the internal audit function would be executed most cost-
effectively through designated internal audit personnel (“IA Personnel”)
working with and as assisted by an independent consulting firm (the
“Internal Control Auditor”) to conduct semi-annual review of the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems.

During the year, the Internal Control Auditor conducted semi-annual
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in accordance with the scope of review agreed
and approved by the IA Personnel and requirements under CG Code.
The Internal Control Auditor reported to and made recommendations
to the IA Personnel for correction and mitigation of any internal
control defects revealed. The IA Personnel considered that the
recommendations would be effective and was satisfied that there had
been no major deficiency noted in the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems being reviewed. The Internal Control Auditor
and IA Personnel regularly report to the Audit Committee the results of
the activities pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls, including but not limited to, any indications of failings or
material weaknesses in those controls, based on which, the Audit
Committee assists the Board to ensure that the financial reporting
system, internal control system, risk management system, regulatory
compliance and associated procedures are sufficient and effective,
and cooperates with the Internal Control Auditor and IA Personnel to
ensure their access to information necessary to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk management.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board considered during the
year, the risk management and internal control systems to be effective
and have been implemented with adequate resources during the year.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has adopted a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The Inside Information
Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group in relation to restriction
on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours, unintentional
selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of
inside information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management takes all reasonable measures
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
breach of any disclosure obligations. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the
attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates, who will notify
the Board timely and accordingly, in which case and in the event that
there is evidence of material violation of the Inside Information Policy,
the Board or designated appropriate persons will decide the course of
actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of the Group’s annual audit and other audit related services
as well as non-audit services for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approximately HK$2,500,000 and HK$980,000
respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General

Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
for a special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require
the Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction
of business specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General

Meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders
may together, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meetings.
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(c)

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting in 2022 being the annual
general meeting held on 12 May 2022 (the “2022 AGM").
Notice of the 2022 AGM was duly sent in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and
the Bye-laws. All members of the Board attended the 2022
AGM and adequate measures were taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and to enable effectively
communication of their views to the Board. At the 2022 AGM,
the Directors were made available to answer questions and
poll procedures were explained to the shareholders in detail
in accordance with the requirements under the CG Code. The
Company's external auditor also attended the 2022 AGM to
answer any questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor's report, the accounting
policies applied and its independence.

Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires to the Board.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board annually reviews the Company's shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at the
Company's website) to ensure that the shareholders and potential
investors at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile,
in order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner, and to allow active shareholders’ engagement
with the Company. During the year, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy. Having considered the various existing
channels of communication and participation, including but not
limited to:

- publishing key corporate governance policies, the terms of
reference of Board committees, the Group's financial reports,
press releases and announcements on the Company’s
website;

(9]
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publishing annual reports, interim reports, ESG reports and
announcements in a timely manner on the Stock Exchange's
and the Company's websites;

presenting the annual and interim results through online
and face-to-face meetings (as the case may be) in order to
communicate with shareholders, investors and analysts;

encouraging shareholders to raise questions at our AGMs
and SGMs (if any); and

providing contact information (telephone, fax number and
email address) on the Company's website for effective
communication between shareholders and the Company,

the Board considers that the shareholders' communication policy
has been properly implemented and effective during the year.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk,
where updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company's constitutional documents
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of electronic
funds transfer point-of-sale (”E-payment Terminals”) products, provision
of maintenance and installation and payment solution services.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of
E-payment Terminals products, provision of maintenance and installation
and payment solution services. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 20 December 2010.

Further details of the business review of the Group, details of proposed
dividends and discussion on the Group's future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section on pages 10 to 12
and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 27
Particulars of any important event affecting the Group can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 27 and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The aforementioned references under this sub-section to other parts of
this annual report form part of this Report of the Directors.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In addition to disclosure in the section headed “Exchange Rates
Exposure” in Management Discussion and Analysis section, the Group
also faces with other risks and uncertainties which might affect the
Group’s business, financial condition, operating results or growth
prospects leading to a divergence from expected or historical results.
The principal key risk factors and their potential impact are summarised
below. While the risk factors below are not exhaustive, there may be
other risks currently inapparent or immaterial to the Group which could
be revealed or become material in the future.

b

EFELRENSENEREREFEREE"Z
T THE+ZR=+—HLEEFENKERMF
wKe

FTEEHRMEEBH AN

ARABNEBEBAREZER AEBET 2141
FHERBEEFMHEMN (EFZAK
i) Em RHEERTERI NIRRT FER
7o

AEERRAFENRFRME R DD &
Rz &M B RERME6 -

750168

FERTENERERPEBFINRIKE
MR HEERRERSI MR ERS &
AANBRPR _TE-—FTF+_RB-_+HES
BHMAERZAARAR (TBPM) EREM-

AREBNFEXEZRLIENE —TFE BIKRKR
EHEBREAERRKREFERNTRBEI N
FI0OENBEFFRENFIZZ2IEEEREZ
HmEoM— M - ERHHEEEFENEKRSE
TR BE13E27TEE BB 2 Im i o
— RS FRERM T

EAt Aoy B P A F 3R H M ED D RO IR A B AR
EFEREN—HD -

BT AR R A FEE

MREEES RO —BHRIERER —&HH
REN AEBTEHEBNEFESERER
BRI CEXENERINKUEMEREATE
HASKE LR IR 0 By H Ath &L B e A E
M- TBRABREAERABEZEHAN T T
JIRBARLIFFRREE T EFEHESE
B 3R 5 (e N R BA B (5 FF B R B G 2R BJ BEF R
HEFTEANEMER -

BERKESAERAT T FFH 49



Report of the Directors
EFXTHRS

The payment solutions are rapidly evolving in pace with the continuous
technological developments and changing customer demands, where
lagging behind the dynamics may drive customers to our competitors,
and in turn affect our business and prospects. Building on our strongly
established R&D fundamentals, the Group will continue to invest
resources in R&D to develop a spectrum of industry leading products
and offer cutting-edge payment solutions to customers in order to
remain competitive.

In terms of compliance risks, the Group is subject to complex and
changing laws and regulations in different countries, which expose the
Group to increased costs and potential liabilities. In particular, due to our
substantial presence in the PRC, our business and prospects are affected
by changes in industry-specific Chinese government policies. To ensure
full compliance, the Group closely monitor regulatory requirements,
engage professional advisers when necessary and make timely responses
to policy and regulatory changes.

While grasping the business and growth opportunities in the post-
COVID time in light of the accelerating global cashless initiatives, the
Group still encounters risks and uncertainties arising from suspension
of work and postponed delivery of products by suppliers resulting from
national and local regulations on epidemic prevention and control
policies due to possible repeated outbreaks. To minimise the negative
impact of the pandemic to the Group, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been implemented in our offices across the
globe, including the adoption of comprehensive and co-ordinated
approach and measures to enhance our supply chain management,
through responding promptly, staying alert to the situation, and working
in an open and transparent manner.

In addition, the ongoing international trade disputes and relevant
policy changes may result in tariffs and other measures that could
adversely affect the Group’s business. For example, trade tensions may
lead to a comprehensive series of tariffs imposed on our exports by
the importing countries. Tariffs increase our product costs, resulting in
possible reduction of profit margin or reduced product competitiveness
for customers due to elevated selling prices. The Group will closely
monitor any changes in connection with the trade tension and adjust its
strategies accordingly.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in the
process of operation. The Group’s major wastes comprise of terminal
machines and tools used and disposed by the customers. To mitigate
the adverse impact on the environment, waste machines and tools
are transferred to government-recognised recycling companies for
undergoing electronic waste recycling and decomposition. In recent
years, we have also strengthened the green office concept by promoting
paperless office, use of energy-saving electrical appliances such as LED
light pipes and inductive faucets, wastes classification and recycling, and
encouraging video conferencing in place of physical business trips to
reduce energy consumption and carbon footprint.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group’s business and the compliance measures adopted and
implemented during the year are outlined below:-

“Provisions on the Administration of Compulsory Product”
Certification

Key scope

The Group’s E-payment Terminals products are required to pass the
national compulsory product certification (i.e. China Compulsory
Certification) and be marked with the certification mark before they can
be delivered, sold, imported or used in other business activities.

Compliance measures

The Group conducts quality assurance capability inspections on
factories, including but not limited to production process controls and
inspections, internal quality audits, etc., and conducts type tests on
end products to ensure that products are in strict compliance with the
Compulsory Product Certification requirements in terms of structure,
safety-critical components and key components that have impact on
electromagnetic compatibility.

The Group has also established product certification management
procedures, which clarify the application process of our certification
products, their routine maintenance and the use and management
method of our product certification marks, in order, to ensure that the
Group meets the requirements of the Compulsory Product Certification
requirements for product certification.
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"Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China; Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China”

Key scope

Agreements among natural persons, legal persons and other
organisations for the establishment, modification or termination of
a relationship involving civil rights and obligations are subject to the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.

The Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China is applicable
to all activities of production and sales in the PRC. The Group shall fulfill
all relevant product quality responsibilities and obligations in the PRC.

Compliance measures

The Group has adopted internal monitoring and control measures to
record the entire process concerning the entering into, performance and
amendment, etc., of contracts to control contract risks.

In addition to implementing policies to require suppliers to sign quality
assurance agreements and related documents, the Group has also set up
strict material warehousing inspection procedures and product delivery
inspection procedures to ensure that product quality complies with legal
requirements.

“Sales of Goods Ordinance” (Chapter 26 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SOGO"); “Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance” (Chapter 457 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SOS0™)

Key scope

SOGO regulates the sales of goods by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOGO provides that, in a contract for the sale of goods by description,
there is an implied condition that the goods shall correspond with the
description. It also provides that where a seller sells goods in the course
of a business, there is an implied condition that the goods supplied
under the contract are of merchantable quality, except where an
exception condition is met.

SOSO regulates the supply of services by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOSO provides that in a contract for the supply of service where the
supplier is acting in the course of a business, there is an implied term
that the supplier will carry out the service with reasonable care and
skill. It also provides that under a contract for the supply of a service
where the supplier is acting in the course of a business, if the time
for carrying out the service is not fixed by the contract or is not left
to be determined by the course of dealing between the parties, there
is an implied term that the supplier will carry out the service within a
reasonable time.
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Compliance measures

The Group has adopted appropriate internal control, quality control
measures, customer feedback system and implemented standardised
product return policies to ensure compliance with SOGO and SOSO in
relation to the supply of goods and services in Hong Kong.

During the year, there has been no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and growth
opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees remuneration
packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees
are granted options under the Company’s share option scheme in
recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s physical
and mental development. Diverse events and activities are organised for
the employees for fostering work-life balance and personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and suggestions of
our customers and have always maintained effective communications
with the customers. We will continue to reach out for current and
prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-site visits and major
customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to
achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the Group’s
business performance and growth because suppliers can have direct
influence over the quality of the products and services and customer
satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers” in
respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
comprehensive appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing
suppliers and their products and performance. We are committed
to establishing a close and long-term cooperation relationship with
business partners.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 84.

DIVIDEND

The Board's goal is to bring sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development.
Pursuant to the Company's dividend policy, dividends may be
recommended, declared and paid to shareholders from time to time,
determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board, taking into
account the following factors:

° Group’s financial results and general financial condition;

° the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity;
o liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;

. the Group's current and future operations;

° the Group's business development strategies and future expansion
plans;

° the general market conditions;

° any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.
During the year,

- a final dividend of HK$0.15 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2021, amounting to approximately HK$161.8
million, was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company; and

- an interim dividend of HK$0.17 per ordinary share for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 (2021: HK$0.12 per ordinary share),
amounting to approximately HK$183.5 million (2021: HK$131.8
million), was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company.
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The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HK$0.19
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$0.15 per ordinary share) to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Thursday, 8 June 2023, subject to the approval
of shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company which will be held on Friday, 19 May 2023
(the "AGM"), and if passed, the final dividend will be paid on Tuesday,
27 June 2023. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 6 June 2023 to Thursday, 8 June 2023, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Financial Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
(the “Share Registrar”) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June
2023. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total dividend per
ordinary share amounted to HK$0.36 (2021: HK$0.27), subject to the
shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at the AGM.

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of
the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM will
be Monday, 15 May 2023. All transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 15 May 2023.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and in Notes 26 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable donations of approximately HK$218,000 were made by the
Group during the year (2021: HK$174,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no
equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted on 2 May 2019
(“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward eligible
participants who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and
to encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any Director,
officer, employee or consultant of any member of the Group and any
other groups or classes of participants which the Board, in its absolute
discretion, considers to have contributed or will contribute, whether
by way of business alliance or other business arrangement, to the
development and growth of the Group. The Board recognises persons
other than the Group's personnel may also contribute to the Group’s
development and growth if such persons can contribute in the capacity
of distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or other service providers of the Group. The Board will apply
the aforesaid in any consideration of potential eligible participants that
are not the Group's personnel.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of share options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1.0% of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue.
For options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates, the said limit
is reduced to 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and HK$5
million in aggregate value based on the closing price of the Shares on
the date of each grant.

The exercise price for the share options shall be determined by the
Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1 in
acceptance of the Company’s offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options to
be granted under share option scheme will be 82,514,550 shares, being
7.5% of the total number of shares in issue on 2 May 2019, the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

Subject to the early termination or amendment by an ordinary resolution
in general meeting of shareholders and/or resolutions of the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date of adoption on 2 May 2019 and expiring
on the tenth anniversary thereof.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option was
granted, cancelled or lapsed, and a total of 1,484,000 share options
(which were part of the share options granted to the employees on 2
October 2019) were exercised, and the weighted average closing price
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$7.60 per share. 4,550 share options were available
for grant under the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31
December 2022 respectively. The particulars of the share options under
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE

FATNBIREZS)

COMPANY
Number of Number of
outstanding outstanding
Closing price share options share options
immediately held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled held as at
before the 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant date of grant  Exercise price 2022 the year the year the year the year 2022
RZE_Z RZEZZ
—-A-H +ZRA=+-H
=z iz iz
A A ) WA ) L W
% bidi] =k HigmE T ERELE EREH ERfE FRRH FEREH RBREXE
() (1)
(&7 (&7
Directors and
chief executive*
BERTBAH
Nie Guoming 2 October 2019* 353 357 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
REH “E-hETRCA*
LuJie 2 October 2019* 353 357 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
EA “E-NETAZRX
Li Wenjin 2 October 2019* 353 357 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
FNE “E-N\EF+RCH*
Topal for Directors 23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000
Employees
&E
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.53 3.57 36,886,000 - (1,484,000) - - 35,402,000
(43r) “E-A\E+RCH*
Total fO[ Employees 36,886,000 - (1,484,000) - - 35,402,000
845t
Total 59,886,000 - (1,484,000) - - 58,402,000
#y

58

Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin are Directors of the Company. Mr. Lu
Jie is a Director and also the chief executive officer of the Company.

30% of the share options were vested on the date of grant, a further 30%
were vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining
40% were vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant. All share
options are immediately exercisable after being vested to the grantees. The
exercise period of these share options shall be 5 years from the date of
grant, subject to the aforesaid vesting period.

120,000 share options were exercised subsequent to 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this Report. As at the date of this report, a total of
58,282,000 shares (representing approximately 5.40% of the shares in
issue as at the date of this Report) are available for issue in respect of share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

This category includes employee participants only. No share option has ever

been granted to any related entity participants or service providers under
the Share Option Scheme.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounting to HK$371,262,000 (2021: HK$143,952,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of

HK$1,128,184,000 (2021: HK$1,191,367,000) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 187.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of

AR Ikf# R

REABRE-HAN—FEQEE (KE:]) st8
KRNBIRZEZZF+ZA=T—HEBEAH
371,262,000 8 ofEBRIH K (T2 —4F ¢
143,952,000 1) © A > AN A B B LB B AL
IR BR B BER T A 801,128,184,000%8

Sl

T (CTE

——4%F :1,191,367,0003 7T) BIERIE o

B tE
@ﬂzmaujrﬁmmﬁ%* R ENEXRE T

L FMBEE

AEBRBEREMBREENESE KT HEIR
A EEHRNE 1878

BE -HENREE:ES
RER AR REAZPTERES 11,092,000

RPN RS FZ S RARIRE

B

11,092,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate consideration of RRE @R » 485t UE497%69,228,6708 7T ui 15
approximately HK$69,228,670 on the Stock Exchange as follows: mr
No. of shares Total
repurchased Consideration
BiEE R Consideration per share Paid
Date of Repurchase BE[E1 H #A #HE BRAE BftERE
Highest HK$ Lowest HK$ HK$
REATT RIEET BT
7 January 2022 - "F—HFtH 1,800,000 5.47 5.36 9,746,430
13 January 2022 _E__F#—-A+=H 1,800,000 5.41 5.33 9,689,270
31 March 2022 —EZF=RA=+—H 1,177,000 6.45 6.24 7,534,200
7 April 2022 —E-_FWAtH 903,000 7.09 6.88 6,295,100
14 April 2022 “E__FMNMA+WA 1,004,000 7.02 6.76 6,962,060
21 April 2022 - _FMB”-+—H 1,100,000 6.97 6.72 7,556,280
28 April 2022 - _FMB-+N\H 1,008,000 6.79 6.67 6,789,070
13 May 2022 2 FRA+Z=H 1,150,000 6.53 6.32 7,461,770
26 May 2022 TEZZFERAZHH 1,150,000 6.31 6.11 7,194,490
Total amst 11,092,000 69,228,670
BEBRBRMRKERAT —T 5% 59
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The Board considers that the share repurchases were in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders and would lead to an
enhancement of the net assets value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Company. As at the date of this report, all of the above
repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly
and the balance of consideration was charged against the share
premium account.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares or other
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Yip Wai Ming will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Separate resolutions shall also be proposed for the re-election of Mr.
Yip Wai Ming, who has served the Company as an independent non-
executive Director for more than 9 years, at the AGM pursuant to Code
Provision B.2.3.

In addition, Mr. Fok Wai Shun, Wilson was nominated as a candidate for
independent non-executive Director by the Board, and the appointment
of Mr. Fok Wai Shun, Wilson is subject to the approval by the
shareholders at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 May 2022 for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2022 for
Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 6 to 9.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liability,
including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action against
the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred arising from or
incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Company’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

ERRATEHEHEN IR « AR KRR
SRz R

RZE_HF+R=+t—H'REFERER

BT AR S (T1TEAB &) TS A B) K HL AR B
ZH (EERBSRMERD (BERPERK
) EXVED) AR BRMD (TRH 1) ~EAAE
BERM RESFT HEEBELALTRBDRIEE
SREHRMEIS2FFENELCMARIEL
TRAMEI0OFTH LHETAEFTETES

RHHIRE

STHJ(MEZ2FE)) BN g ARAE K

ERAHMERZBRAE (MM WG &
HKEWMT

AT EREE.10ETHEER

Approximate

Personal Other percentage of

Name of Director Capacity interests interests Total” shareholding
Rigz

ERfth BREMH EPN: 4 Hitigz" BE BMESHr
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 1,000,000 5,200,000(L) 0.48%
ZER (XRF) ETEEA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 11,000,000 19,870,000(L) 1.84%
EA (TR BEaEBA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 11,000,000 13,890,000(L) 1.29%
EXE HitfEA
Notes: M 5F

The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares.

These represented the underlying interests in Shares in respect of share
options granted to the respective Director subject to certain vesting
conditions, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2022 which was 1,079,695,000 ordinary shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND F BRI B AH ARG 17 8O 25 B3
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING &
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of substantial ~ #Z &K A B IRIEE S RAEKAFEI36EEFEEN
shareholders (other than a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares ZEiMFFBER~R R _E__F+_H=+—
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register H>FERE (MIEESFRITHAEAR) RERQT
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as BIRMD ERIEEKRMDPFAEENEDZ EXAN

follows: o
Approximate
Class of Total number percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity securities of Shares® shareholding®
BEAY 4R
BRERAE g1 HE5EER LR Bt
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000(L) 33.71%
(“Hi Sun") BEmEAA Ziahg
BERE (FE) BRAE (MEH)
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. Investment manager Ordinary 84,642,544 (L) 7.84%
KREKIE =R
FMR LLC Interest of controlled Ordinary 76,480,800 (L)@ 7.08%
corporations Ziahg

R AE R

Notes: P T :
1. The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. 1. FEMMIRTREONEFE-
2. The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares inissue 2. BRWBREBERAQABNR_-_ZZ_F+"A8
as at 31 December 2022 which was 1,079,695,000 ordinary shares. —+—HBEETRM4EH (B11,079,695,0008%
EE) stE

3. These shares are held by FMR LLC through various corporations 100% 3. FMR LLCEBEZE100%EHZE B EZ X
directly or indirectly controlled by it. HHEZERD -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed below and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not enter into any other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which is subject to
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun (together with its subsidiaries the “Hi Sun Group”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, is a connected person (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company. Accordingly, transactions between the
Group and Hi Sun Group and/or its associates including the Megahunt
Group (as defined below) constitute connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group, from time to
time, (i) entered into individual agreements with the Hi Sun Group
relating to the supply of E-payment Terminals Products (the “E-payment
Terminals Transactions”) under the 2022 Framework Agreement (as
defined below); and (ii) entered into individual agreements with the
Hi Sun Group and/or its designated associates (as the case may be)
relating to the purchase of Chips (the “Chips Transactions”) under the
2020 Chips Framework Agreement (as amended and supplemented by
the Supplemental Agreements) (as defined below) respectively. These
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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Supply of E-payment Terminals Products

On 23 December 2021, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2022 Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and Hi Sun Group
agreed to purchase E-payment Terminals Products for a term
of 3 years commencing on 1 January 2022 and expiring on 31
December 2024.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions under the 2022 Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024 were HK$20,000,000 and the actual
aggregate contract value for the E-payment Terminals Transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$153,000.

In view of Hi Sun Group’s track record as a payment processing
solutions provider and the long-term business relationship
between the Group and Hi Sun Group, the Board considers
the continuous supply of E-payment Terminals Products to Hi
Sun Group by virtue of entering into of the 2022 Framework
Agreement is in line with the business model of the Group and
would allow the Group to generate stable income in the China
market.

The E-payment Terminals Transactions under the 2022 Framework
Agreement are on a non-exclusive basis, which means that the
Group will maintain its discretionary rights to sell the E-payment
Terminals products to third parties.

During the year, the Group has followed the internal control
measures and policies in determining the prices and terms of
the individual agreements governing the E-payment Terminals
Transactions, and all E-payment Terminals Transactions were on
terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered to
independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
quantity and specifications.
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Purchase of Chips

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2020 Chips Framework Agreement”) with Hi
Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and Hi Sun
Group agreed to sell the mag-stripe card security decoder chips,
the security micro controller unit chips and the contactless reader
chips (collectively the “Chips”) for a term of 3 years commencing
on 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31 December 2022.

The Board envisaged that the annual caps contemplated under the
2020 Chips Framework Agreement could not meet the business
needs of the Group. The Company and Hi Sun then entered into
(i) the first supplemental agreement on 10 September 2021 to
revise the annual caps for the two years ended 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2022; and (ii) the second supplemental
agreement on 24 June 2022, pursuant to which the Group and
Hi Sun, its subsidiaries and designated associates would continue
the Chips Transactions with a further revised annual cap for
the year ended 31 December 2022, in order to cope with the
strong and persistent market demand for the Group's E-Payment
Terminals, the high price of the Chips in general due to the overall
supply constraints and the Group's production capacity assurance
measures, in view of the relatively high utilisation rate of the then
annual caps.

The revised annual caps of the total contract value for the Chips
Transactions under the 2020 Chips Framework Agreement (as
revised and supplemented by the aforesaid first and second
supplemental agreements (collectively the “Supplemental
Agreements”) for the three years ending 31 December 2020, 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2022 were HK$80,000,000,
HK$120,000,000 and HK$190,000,000 respectively. The actual
aggregate contract value for the Chips Transactions for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2022 were approximately HK$76,607,000 and
HK$118,332,000 and HK$151,243,000 respectively.
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In view of the Group’s continuous demand for the Chips after ER_EZTZERRERGZE (KB

the expiry of the term of the 2020 Chips Framework Agreement
(as revised and supplemented by the Supplemental Agreements),
the Company and Megahunt Technologies Inc. (“Megahunt”),
a joint stock limited liability company indirectly owned as to
approximately 45.73% by Hi Sun and hence an associate of Hi
Sun, entered into another framework agreement on 15 November
2022 (the “2023 Chips Framework Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase and Megahunt and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Megahunt Group”) agreed to sell
the Chips for a term of three years commencing on 1 January
2023 and expiring on 31 December 2025. The annual caps of
the total contract value for the Chips Transactions under the
2023 Chips Framework Agreement for the three years ending
31 December 2023, 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2025
were HK$210,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and HK$250,000,000
respectively.

The Board considers that the entering into of the 2020 Chips
Framework Agreement (as revised and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreements) and the 2023 Chips Framework
Agreement would ensure continuous and stable supply of the
Chips for production of the Group's E-Payment Terminals products
and reduce the operational risks and costs and time required for
sourcing new suppliers and extra supervision and quality check
of the Chips to be supplied by other market suppliers, given the
specifications and quality of the Chips supplied by Hi Sun Group
and Megahunt Group are well suited to the needs of the Group.

The Chips Transactions under the 2020 Chips Framework
Agreement (as revised and supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) and the 2023 Chips Framework Agreement is on a
non-exclusive basis, and the Group maintains its discretionary right
to source the Chips from other suppliers.

During the year, the purchase price of the Chips under the 2020
Chips Framework Agreement (as revised and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreements) was determined with reference to the
prices of the same or similar products sold by Hi Sun Group and
third party suppliers in the industry. The Group has also adopted
internal control measures in respect of, inter alia, evaluating the
individual agreements governing the prices and terms for the
Chips Transactions and sourcing for comparable suppliers. The
Chips Transactions conducted on terms no less favourable to the
Group than those available from independent third parties.
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The Board including the independent non-executive Directors has
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirms
that these transactions were entered into by the Company in
accordance with relevant pricing policies, and that these transactions
were conducted:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2022 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board
confirms that the auditor has issued to the Board an unqualified letter
confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above for the year ended 31 December 2022 as being in order. A copy
of this letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Details of the continuing connected transactions which also constituted
related party transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 under the relevant accounting standards are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during
the year is disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the section above headed “Connected
Transactions”, all related party transactions that constituted continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are exempt from
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and
Hi Sun on 1 December 2010 ("Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant
to which Hi Sun shall not compete either directly or indirectly with the
Group's principal business activities in such geographic territories in
which the Group operates.

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration (“Declaration”) of compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition confirming its compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned undertakings and consider that Hi Sun has complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the financial year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Li Wenjin (“Mr. Li"”), an Executive Director, concurrently serving as an
executive director of Hi Sun and a director of certain of its subsidiaries,
is interested in 6,400,000 shares of Hi Sun, representing 0.23% of its
issued shares as at 31 December 2022, and hence required to abstain
from voting on any resolution of the Board in respect of any particular
transaction or business involving any actual or potential conflict of
interest between the Group and the Hi Sun Group.

Notwithstanding Mr. Li's aforesaid interests in the Hi Sun Group, the
Board considers that Mr. Li is not interested in a business competing or
is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the Group’s business,
taking into account the Deed of Non-Competition, the Declaration, any
implications thereunder and the independent non-executive Directors’
review thereof.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates is interested in any business competing or is likely to compete
either directly or indirectly with the Group's business that is discloseable
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the Directors, chief executive or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in which any Director or any entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested directly or indirectly subsisted at
any time during or at the end of the year, nor was there any contract
of significance between the Group and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2022 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 17.3%
— five largest suppliers combined 32.5%
Sales

— the largest customer 24.7%
— five largest customers combined 42.5%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of the Company) has any interests in any of the suppliers
or customers disclosed above.

PENSION SCHEMES

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, under which employers and employees are each required
to make regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions
additional to Mandatory Contributions.
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Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an employee
are fully and immediately vested in the employee once paid to the
trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return derived from the
investment of the Mandatory Contributions is also fully and immediately
vested in the employee. The employees are entitled to all of the accrued
benefits derived from the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject
to other applicable provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 22% of their basic wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

There is no arrangement where contributions may be forfeited under
the defined contribution schemes of the Group.

The Group also operates a defined benefit pension plan for employees
working in Korea. The plan is administrated by an independent trustee
with its assets held separately from those of the Group. The plan is
wholly funded by contributions from the Group. The actuarial valuation
of the plan was prepared by certified insurance actuaries of Dlog
Actuarial Consulting, who are registered with the Financial Services
Commission of Korea, using the projected unit credit method. In
calculating the surplus in the plan of approximately WON128,968,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$800,000) as at 31 December 2022,
the key actuarial assumptions adopted by Dlog Actuarial Consulting
are annual discount rate and salary growth rate of 5.84% and 3.88%
respectively. The actuarial valuation indicates the Group’s obligations
under the defined benefit pension plan are 130% covered by the plan
assets held by the trustee as at 31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained at all times during
the year sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report
VRS T

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 84 to 186, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERAREESEE

Impairment of receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note
4(a) (critical accounting estimates and judgments) and
Note 21 (trade and bills receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost) to the consolidated financial
statements.

BRI SR E M3 1)) (M EABEE) B 24(a)
(BZE5 155 RAE) RITEE21 (IR R I EIE
Ktz 5 ik 2K 5 iR 2 B 0 & A=)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$2,472.9 million and provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$127.9 million.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

RIEZZ_F+"A=+—H> EEENRKERMNE
BR2,4729B 8B BBRFUABERER127988H
Lo BEEEMEURRNEIATRAEEHEIERE -

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of trade
receivables included:
BMEERAEEET LRI ERIAEREREZE1ER
BE !

- Understood, evaluated and validated the key control
procedures over the management’s estimation of
expected credit losses and periodic review of aged
receivables and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors
associated with estimating the expected credit losses;

- ER - TEKBRREEEMGHEREERERTHE
2B AR R IE I RA R BRI 12 7 > MBI & 8 B (i 5t
FHEEGEERANGENTREREERAEMESR
R E 2K > S E RS R R AV E A R

- Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses of receivables. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern from the past periods,
correspondence with the customers, evidence from
external sources including the relevant market research
regarding the relevant forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors used in management's
assessment;

-  ISEEEHRWHIATRREEBENTE - HME
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERAREESEE

Management applied judgment in assessing the
expected credit losses. Receivables relating to customers
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment losses. Expected credit
losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables based on shared credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and
applying the expected credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The expected
credit loss rates are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced from the past periods and
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREERAETLEAEEEE SN ENETEMH
RAENE R FCWMEEFETEEREBBBRIES TR
AERGBSERER TG -Gt RBEERERTEE
HARWRREE A ME - MIBUE RREANZRE
HEEFEERBIECET D E L HB G HERBWAIET
Mo R TEERE BB EXE AN EE RN EREFE
NECHEREEGEEG RPGEEEBEXNLRES
FHEMERNESEEBEBEET TEABRURMKRIR
R ATEMER flNBEME B R ENRIKRIAED
NRBREERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgment
involved in determining the expected credit losses of the
trade receivables.
EMEAILEEERENBBIRRNERHE URTE
TE FEUS AR R TR HA 15 B RSB B5 09 I (il 51 A0 1) i o
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- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices; and

-  PEnTHEREEER KA N EHBEERRER
e ZEREME S &

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts.

- MEsERBTWEAE BB BRNE
B

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgment made by management in respect of the expected
credit losses and the collectability of receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERAREESEE

Provision for inventories

FRAEE

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates
and judgments) and Note 20 (inventories) to the
consolidated financial statements.

E B IR XM 5E40b) (BEE & 5551 R &) R ITEE20
(&)

The Group held inventories of HK$2,527.3 million as at
31 December 2022. Inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value (“NRV"”). The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories
are aged and damaged, if they have become obsolete, or
if their selling prices have declined. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group has made provision for
inventories of HK$32.1 million.

BEEER - "HF+"RB=+—HFAFEHN2,5273
BEBT -FENERNAESIRFE (T7]215RFE])
ZBREEINR - HEEERRE -BE -BRFHIEBT
BRI EEARDNEERNEA - BE_SZ __F+_8
=+—HLEFE> EEEARFEEE#HN32.188%

T ©

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items.
BEEEERFE
BREFENER - FEREB

5 A K P IR R E 2 BEE @%?
RMERFENEAEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on NRV and obsolescence of inventories
included:

KM EREEENGESR
THESREFEE !

SRS RERE R T BR

- Understood, evaluated and validated the key control
procedures over the management’s estimation of the
NRV of the inventories and conducting periodic review
on inventory obsolescence, and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk associated with estimating NRV of the inventories;

- ER KRB EEEGHEFEVERFERTH
ERGEANNEREZERER LBBEREGHEF
B2 ERRNGENIREREEREMER
BT ST B AR E SRR ;

- Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of
provision of inventories to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

— HEBTHENEEERENERUTME
STRRFRIARL ;

B =R

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether
there is any damaged or obsolete inventory;

- HEESETER USNEESEEMIREIBRST
=,

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profile of individual inventory items by checking to the
underlying procurement correspondence and invoices;

- PENEHERRBERNKRER DUhESREER
FEEB B 2 ERE
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERAREESEE

Management calculates the NRV at each period end
based on the estimated selling price less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, which requires
significant judgments and assumptions to be made
to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling
products of similar nature and expectation of future
sales based on current market conditions.
EEENHBAEBHNRMGTLTNHERERFESR
HAMERFE TECANERZRUEBRAE
PEXRAFREBR BFEEUTEEHALUMEEERN
KEBURBREAHRERREEFLH ZFRA -

Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
marketability of aged products and makes specific
provision for long aged inventories. Management also
conducted periodic review on inventory obsolescence,
including performance of periodic inventory counts and
review of holding period for individual inventory items.

EEERMEFEN TS RBMLHFHFEERMER
BER L INKRBREFEFEHEERBE -EEETS
MFEEEBARETCHEE OETHETEFERM
RERENGFEEEENF AR

We focused on this area due to the estimation of
provision for inventories involves significant judgment
and various uncertainties as a result of changing
technology, customer demand and competitors actions.
RMBAILEREENHFENRBERTIRERH
B UARBRMMHMAR - ERBRKGRFEZTAERS
BREARRARZE -
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Tested on a sample basis, the marketability of individual
inventory items by checking to the estimated future
utilisation rate and ageing profile. We discussed
with management its assessment on marketability of
inventory, corroborating explanations with the ageing
profile and sales orders of the relevant finished goods
by using our industry knowledge and external market
analysis, as appropriate;

BEBERRMEHEAXTREFEEER LRSIV
HAERFEEEZHHRBE L - HMGEEERE R
HE st EEmHREE R 2 BARMET
ENHBASNEBHIZ DM QER) »EREMEFEEE
e R SH E ST BRI FRTE

Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of
significant inventory items, obtained through the
usage report subsequent to the year end as a basis to
identify inventory obsolescence. Where there are no
subsequent usage of the respective items after the year
end, we discussed with management its assessment on
estimated future utilisation, corroborating explanations
with the sales orders and marketability of the relevant
finished goods by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis, as appropriate; and
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Key Audit Matter
R EtEE

b

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAEERAREESEE

- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory
items, by comparing the selling price subsequent to the
year end, against the carrying values of these individual
finished goods. Where there are no subsequent sales
of the respective finished goods after the year end, we
discussed with management as to the realisable value
of the products, corroborating explanations with the
sales orders, historical margins, and current market
conditions by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis, as appropriate.

- MBS EEFEREZIERFE FAE
PRERN R RN EREBNEEEERAEEF—LE

BoWNERRTEHENBRRK M RMPERE
EENmZEMNAIEIFE TEBRMETENN
AN HIZ DM QER) - EEARHETE B
FEEMRRIRITH R RRE

Based on the procedures described, we found the
estimations of management in relation to the provision for
inventories were supportable by available evidence.
RIEPIAEF  RMEREEEAMFEEH 2G5BT
(EL iR SR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2023

b

HRBSAZEETEENFER  HAEEMLE
FEHARREUBRENEFRAEE E
Mg R B FE - I ERBENR S P
MEBLERE RIFZRERTAFARKESE
LR NAEBRKFEFRNERT  MREGER
HERMRSTEERESFSELEANEEER
BREENARMGE  HFPREFEAERS T
BREZEE

HEABIYZBMRESHNESEESBAR
BREEE o

BB KEBEGHEMEFFR
BEE A

58/ T =ZF=RA”-+"-H

BERKBKARAE —T 5% 83



Consolidated Income Statement
FE N mR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
s BT —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Revenue A 5 8,062,702 7,195,982
Cost of sales HE R A 7 (4,756,561) (4,368,785)
Gross profit EF 3,306,141 2,827,197
Other income H A A 5 64,915 96,315
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (5518) Wz 358 5 (2,178) 50,459
Selling expenses HERMS 7 (821,605)  (716,234)
Administrative expenses THER 7,8 (1,121,022)  (958,185)
Net reversal of impairment losses/ TREEZRERIBEREIFRE
(impairment losses) on financial assets CREZFETR) 7 3,091 (21,580)
Operating profit T 1,429,342 1,277,972
Finance costs &R 9 (5,649) (6,979)
Share of results of investments accounted for ~ FE{LIZHEZS Z AR
using the equity method KEXES 19 7,415 3,454
Profit before income tax BRFER 1S FiiE F 1,431,108 1,274,447
Income tax expense FriEE 11 (162,905)  (182,205)
Profit for the year FEHMN 1,268,203 1,092,242
Profit attributable to: FE(EEF :
Owners of the Company EAN/NEIES TN 1,264,675 1,083,774
Non-controlling interests JEITERE R 3,528 8,468
1,268,203 1,092,242
HK$ HK$
per share per share
sSRAET SRAET
Earnings per share for the profit ERBEFEA
attributable to the owners of e ER 2 SRER .
the Company:
— Basic —H7K 12(a) 1.170 0.989
— Diluted —#E 12(b) 1.141 0.957

The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

e
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REEEBRER

b

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
ZEIZH T —fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihEz2 FHET FHET
Profit for the year FEHMN 1,268,203 1,092,242
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Hihzm (F518) k&
net of tax NRIRIA
Item that may be subsequently reclassified to ~ BZBSEEH HEFEmzEH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of B EINHTE A BB 7R =
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ E4ERIE R Z%E (405,651) 84,808
Items that will not be reclassified to FTEEMPIEFTIRm o HE
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of B ESINHTE A BT B 7R =
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ ZE 4 RIE R Z%E 5,926 (3,425)
Fair value (loss)/gain on an investment —IBEERENNTE (BE) Wa (2,414) 360
Remeasurement of post-employment BB RNEBENE
benefit obligation 630 329
Total comprehensive income for the year, FEZEUNELEEE > NRHRIE
net of tax 866,694 1,174,314
Total comprehensive income FEE 2 U 4R%E :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBFBA 857,158 1,169,229
Non-controlling interests JERER = 9,536 5,085
866,694 1,174,314

The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HAEEREAER

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
s BT —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 14 769,372 485,527
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 230,567 282,477
Intangible assets EBEEE 16 27,761 32,909
Financial assets measured at fair value BANFEFAEZERMEE 17 110,940 127,096
Investments accounted for using the BREDEARZIEE
equity method 19 26,816 20,580
Other non-current assets HMIERs & E 22 4,744 4,967
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISMEE 28 147,115 77,616
Total non-current assets EREBEELEE 1,317,315 1,031,172
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 20 2,527,293 2,071,285
Other current assets Hit e & E 22 88,506 63,190
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEIER AT IR it rt & E 21 29,869 18,609
Trade and bills receivables PR BR T R FE W ZE 4 21 2,350,368 2,081,977
Restricted cash ZREIIRE 23 16,740 22,091
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 24 3,160,238 3,532,954
Total current assets MENEELE 8,173,014 7,790,106
Total assets BEEHE 9,490,329 8,821,278
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners of TATFHE AEGER
the Company
Share capital Rg 7~ 25 107,970 109,298
Reserves #E 26 6,826,856 6,377,831
6,934,826 6,487,129
Non-controlling interests JEHERG RS (28,976) (30,573)
Total equity g 6,905,850 6,456,556

The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 591 E 186 BN iE & M HMRRWE P
financial statements. o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
FAEEREAR

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
s BT —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
LIABILITIES &af&
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 65,578 84,648
Deferred income tax liabilities REPFEREaE 28 8,310 11,389
Other non-current liabilities HMIEmenas 1,085 5,142
Total non-current liabilities ERENEELELE 74,973 101,179
Current liabilities mENAaE
Trade payables FE{TBR TR 27 1,699,530 1,668,823
Other payables and accruals H AN FE (1 AR 7R K FE 51 R 1B 27 689,143 504,229
Current tax liabilities EHNEEE 100,485 58,537
Lease liabilities HEad 15 20,348 31,954
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 2,509,506 2,263,543
Total liabilities BE4EEE 2,584,479 2,364,722
Total equity and liabilities EEkhaEiEsE 9,490,329 8,821,278

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of #FiGEHHBREN _E_=ZF=H_-+-H

Directors on 22 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf. EESgtE THTMIESRAKREES-
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
EEHA EXE
Director Director
E-Eo 2

The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated F91E 186 BRI sEhir &M HEHRFRPE R I

financial statements. o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEDEER

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FRAEEAE
Share  Employment Non-
Share Share Treasury Capital option benefit Other  Exchange  Retained Total  controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings reserves  interests equity
Bk RfEE EEk  ENHEE BRERE CEEUHE  ANEE MEEER RERY  GBGE  ERER  BEsE
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS$'000
FEn FEn T TR TR FEn Tén Tén TEn FEn FEn T
For the year ended 31 December 2022
+ZRZt+-BLEE
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZB_ZE-R-B2&H 109298 1,191,367 (367) 172,332 (68) (0119 122770 532689 6,377,831 (30,573) 6,456,556
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year FERR - - - - - - - 1264675 1,264,675 3528 1,268,203
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Rth2E (58) /b
Exchange differences arising on translation of the & ENHBARE KHE
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EENEREER - - - - - - (405,651) - (405,651) 506 (399,725
Fair value loss on an investment —BRENATEFE - - - - - (2.414) - - (2,414 - (2,414)
Remeasurement of post-employment EERENERENNE
benefit obligation - - - - 548 - - - 548 82 630
Total comprehensive incomef{oss) FE2ENE/ (58 48
for the year - - - - 548 (2.414) (405,651) 1,264,675 857,158 9,536 866,694
Transactions with owners HERAZRS
Repurchase of the Company's shares (Note 25(a))  EIBALREINRI (H3256) (1476) (68332 367 - - - - - (67.965) - (69,441)
Dividends to the shareholders of BAERAREZRE
the Company - - - - - - - (345,317) (345,317) - (345,317)
Dividends to anon-controling BANBAT ARER 2
interest in a subsidiary RE - - - - - - - - - (7,939 (7,939)
Share option scheme Bt
- share options exercised (Note 25(b)) -BiTEERE
(H325(0) 148 5,149 - - - - - - 5,149 - 5,297
Total transactions with owners EEBAZRREE (1328)  (63183) 367 - - - - (385317)  (408,133) (1939)  (417,400)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIBZZE
+ZRZt+-HzE&R 107970 1,128,184 - 172,332 480 (22533)  (282,881) 6,246,252  6,826,85 (28,976) 6,905,850
The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 591 E 186 E MM sk h 4R & M MR P EH b 56

financial statements.
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EIES

Attributable to the owners of the Company
FRFREARL

b

Share  Employment Non-
Share Share Treasury Capital option benefit Other  Exchange  Retained Total  controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings reserves  interests equity
Bk RfEE EEk  ENHEE BRERE CEEUHE  ANEE MEEER RERY  GBGE  ERER  BEsE
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000
TEn F#n FEn F#n FEn FEn TEn T#n T#En TEn FEn F#n
For the year ended 31 December 2021
+ZRZt+-BLEE
Balance at 1 January 2021 3 —E-B-Rz#&& 109,284 1,243,352 - (414,978) 158,664 (355) (16,687) 37962 4484700 5492658 (28370) 5573572
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year i3l - - - - - - - - 1083774 1,083,774 8468 1,002,242
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Rth2ERE/ (58)
Exchange differences arsing on tranglation of the S EMNBARDHHRE
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EENERER - - - - - - - 84,808 - 84,808 (3.429) 81,383
Fair value gain on an investment —BRENLTERE - - - - - - 360 - - 360 - 360
Remeasurement of post-employment EERENERENNE
benefit obligation - - - - - 27 - - - 27 Iy 39
Total comprehensive income for the year FERANERE - - - - - 287 360 84808 1083774 1,169,229 5085 1174314
Transactions with owners MEAZ&%
Repurchase of the Company’s shares (Note 25(a)) %XS i3 (F5E25) (956) (85,637) (367) - - - - - - (86,004) - (86,960)
Dividends to the shareholders of _HQEZ‘ %S
the Company - - - - - - - - (241,580) (241,580) - (241,580)
Dividends to a non-controling BaNBARRRER 2
interest in a subsidiary TS - - - - - - - - - - (3857) (3857)
Share option scheme BREtd
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BRIERBHEE
(B£10) - - - - 13,668 - - - - 13,668 - 13,668
~ share options exercised (Note 25(b)) ~BTRERERIE (5250) 970 33652 - - - - - - - 33652 - 34622
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in WENE AR 2R ER
a subsidiary (Note 18) (Fzt18) - - - - - - (3,792) - - (3.792) (3.431) (1223
Total transactions with owners EEBAZRREE 14 (51,985) (367) - 13,668 - (379) - (241,580) (284,056) (7,288) (291,330)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-%
+ZR=+-BZiE 109298 1,191,367 (367) (414,978) 172332 (68) (20,119) 122770 53268% 6377831 (30,573) 6,456,556
The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 591 E 186 MM st b 4r & B R KRB H b =0
financial statements. 7o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mAaRERER

Year ended 31 December

HE+-—B=+—RAILEE

2022 2021
—E°C 5
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihEz2 FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBNIRERE
Cash generated from operations KEFRIRE 29(a) 851,154 562,829
Hong Kong profits tax paid BAEBHIE (74,805)  (129,744)
China corporate income tax paid B PRI ZEPFER (108,772) (64,108)
Overseas income tax paid BEEIINTIER (13,401) (14,339)
Interest paid [SENEIES) (5.649) (6,979)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBBIRE T 648,527 347,659
Cash flows from investing activities REZHNRER=E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEY* -BERHRE (330,609)  (344,869)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BETHAREE - (2,832)
Distribution from an investment at fair value KE—IEEATFEFAEBGRZ
through profit or loss KEMN DK 17 2,006 -
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—BEEREDEIARZIEEN
accounted for using the equity method PSR - 13,861
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE-—EBRAFTESAEBTDZ
at fair value through profit or loss BENPTEM 17 - 53,371
Repayment of a loan to an investment BERAEARZBEZ —HENR
accounted for using the equity method HYIE R - 4,600
Decrease in short-term bank deposits R HBSR1T R R L - 3,065
Interest received BUFIE 28,582 38,036
Net cash used in investing activities KRE ARG S (300,021)  (234,768)
Cash flows from financing activities MEBEEHNIRERE
Dividends paid to the shareholders of BENERABRKRENEE
the Company (345,317) (350,864)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest BB A B IR ER
in a subsidiary A E (7,939) (3,857)
Payments for repurchase of the Company’s B A A B RD 2 IR
shares 25(a) (69,441) (86,960)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRNAREE D 29(0) (31,767) (33,859)
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection 17158 B8 B 7 2247 R 1D PR IS 7N 58
with the exercise of share options 5,297 34,622
Acquisition of non-controlling interests in W — R B AR IR R
a subsidiary 18 - (7,223)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFPTAIRE R (449,167)  (448,141)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERFEESLEYRRELFEE (100,661)  (335,250)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FRERIREEEY
of the year 3,532,954 3,802,741
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and BEKAIREEBYNESR
cash equivalents (B518) Wz (272,055) 65,463
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRRERINEZEY
of the year 24 3,160,238 3,532,954
The notes on pages 91 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 591 E 186 E MM sk h 4R & M MR P EH b 56
financial statements. Pal
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
kR MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sale
("E-payment Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation and payment solution services (collectively, referred to
as the "E-payment Terminals solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial assets measured at fair value and post-employment
benefit obligation, which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policies
(a) New and amended standards and accounting
guideline adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following
amendments or annual improvements for the
first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2022:

. Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use — Amendments to
HKAS 16

. Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract — Amendments to HKAS 37

o Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

o Reference to the Conceptual Framework —
Amendments to HKFRS 3

o Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 — Amendments to HKFRS 16

° Amendments to Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

The amendments and annual improvements
listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory
for this reporting period and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group is in
the process of assessing the impact of adopting
these new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations on
its current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer

to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet

respectively.

(ii) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below),

after initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(iii) Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint

arrangement. The Group has a joint venture.

Interests in the joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividend received or receivable
from associated companies and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of

the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated company and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2.9.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to the

owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
the consolidated income statement. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by

applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associated company is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
. consideration transferred,

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes directly attributable costs of an
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the "“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rate are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement, within finance costs. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within

administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVOCI") are recognised

in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet

o income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate on
the dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate. Resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal and partial disposal of foreign

operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to

profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEERBE®
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 YME- -BERSE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5% - 10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment  18% - 25%

Plant and equipment 9% - 33%
Motor vehicles 18% — 25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed

and ready for intended use.

2.8 Intangible assets
(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity

sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal

management purposes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Brand names, contractual customer

relationships and others

Brand names, contractual customer relationships
and others acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected lives from 5 to 10 years to
allocate the cost of them.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to

account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

o Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

M

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss (except for the foreign exchange
gains and losses) arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement and presented in other
(losses)/gains, net. Impairment losses are
presented as a separate line item in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

)

Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other (losses)/gains,
net. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented
in administrative expenses and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement and presented net within other
(losses)/gains, net in the period in which it
arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.10.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other (losses)/gains, net in
the consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

2.104 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and bills receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against net reversal of impairment losses/
(impairment losses) on financial assets in the consolidated
income statement.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand and deposits held at call with banks, with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
kR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (continued)

FTESHEEBRE ®

2.16 Trade and other payables 2.16 FE{TERFR B HfthFE(JBRFR

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers.

Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised

or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise

those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
kR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHHEME®
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.18 BHARIRIEFRSIR @
(c) Offsetting (Q
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i85 7% E Al AT BV R 6 2 HA
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets MEEEHEGBATREME
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances IETR IR BR S T [B — IR 5 14
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax EOAIREREBEEESNAGEN
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has THEOEEH HEMBREZE
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either ERHITHEATEERE R
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and BRPEEEGE NBEERAF
settle the liability simultaneously. BRZEEENERZEER
R AIERRREERAERER
RE -
2.19 Employee benefits 2.19 EEEF
(a) Employee leave entitlements (a) ESEEEH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised EEEEZEWNEBEEETN=ZE
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where BIUED - ~EETHES
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for RS EREH R ERNER
annual leave as a result of services rendered by HEaEEREE ((HEA) -
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity EEEZNEBREBEEZRE
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. ERBZESZ LR
(b) Post-employment pension obligations (b) BEBEEBIhTEF
The Group operates various post-employment AEFEHZELEHERBD
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined BIERTEEHNEAETHIEA
contribution pension plans. &g o
The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated Rt BEaERMATERN
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension BRESHEEINEEREE
plans is the present value of the defined benefit ANBERRANARATEN ST
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the WIBERSEENATHE-
fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation RERNETEERBIEE
is calculated annually by independent actuaries using EMiR AFES BB (ISR 1R 51T 5t
the projected unit credit method. o
The present value of the defined benefit obligation RERANEEMNIRE UL
is determined by discounting the estimated future BN EEELEEEST
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality HWEHHAENEEATEESN
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency M= BRIREEt R KRS R Y
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms MEBTE HIrESBEEERE
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. EIENTENER B &
In countries where there is no deep market in such B ESNTHIEH=Ro
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are
used.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post-employment pension obligations

(continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in employment benefit reserve in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
reserves in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as past service costs.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
kR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEBEEHME®
POLICIES (continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 2.19 EE@H @
(b) Post-employment pension obligations (b) FEBBKEET @

(continued)
For defined contribution plans, the Group has no MAEEMFFEMS > A&EH
further payment obligations once the contributions REMHmEBEEEMMARE
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as o MANINPRCF SRR
an employee benefit expense when they are due. R RERAHEZ RN HR
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the 7 PI AR [B] 3R & 5 7] 4 85 R 2R 4t
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future AERRAEE-

payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations tE5h > R AP E AR A
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), (TFREL) B AR A A &
the Group is required to contribute an amount EEETEETZFENTE
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on HNT%E22%E TRIKEF]
approximately 7% to 22% of the wages for the year FFEMEHMEM - MmN E
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal AIEZEAEBEENRNE
government undertakes to assume the retirement MEF -MZERAKBFSE
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group. FR{EE R E N B LRI
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes Sl E KPR
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans © BRPZERIEAIZE
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for AEBEZERFEEFAELEN
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that AR ENDPEZEREER
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the MY ZABREEZTRAR
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. 5] B 51 P i i A I E A T8
The Group recognises a provision where contractually - BEHRSHNETHATIE
obliged or where there is a past practice that has BIFMTTENHEEMHEER K
created a constructive obligation. EEEEREE-
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the entity

over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting

conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified

vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited directly to

equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Share-based payments (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions among

group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of goods

The Group develops and sells E-payment Terminals
products. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, the customer has accepted
the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in

the consolidated balance sheet.

(ii) Provision of services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Revenue from maintenance and installation and
payment solution services is recognised based on the
actual service provided as at the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided because the customer receives and uses the

benefits simultaneously.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (as lessee)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received and makes adjustments specific to the lease,
e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHEERBE®
POLICIES (continued)

224 HE ((FREMEAN) @

2.24 Leases (as lessee) (continued)

118

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received,
and

o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
and all leases of low-valued assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the consolidated income
statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase option.

2.25 Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when there is a reasonable assurance
that the refund will be received which generally occurs upon
the receipt of the approval of tax refund from the local tax
bureau.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in the
consolidated income statement at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

2.27 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EE

POLICIES (continued)

b

ZEEERME @

2.28 Dividend distribution 2.28 R E 9K

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

BARABDRRDIKREEN AR
BIRRNERE RFBERBER #E
REHPR ExEBRAEATNY

approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where BHRExAEIABEE
appropriate.
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERERE
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 MBERBEZER

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"),
HK$, United States dollar (“US$"), European
dollar ("EUR") and Indian Rupee (“INR"). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR, and there
are no significant assets and liabilities that are
denominated in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominating in a currency
other than HK$, RMB, US$, EUR and INR,
which are the functional currencies of the
major operating companies within the Group.
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$
is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with
the functional currency of HK$ or US$. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$6,393,000 (2021:
HK$6,932,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of the RMB denominated current
account with a related party.

As at 31 December 2022, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$2,555,000 (2021:
HK$2,252,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of the EUR denominated cash and
cash equivalents and trade receivables.

For the companies with RMB as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2022, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$18,123,000
(2021: HK$15,554,000) higher/lower
respectively, mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of the HK$
denominated current account with a related

party.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with EUR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2022, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$6,119,000 (2021:
HK$2,089,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of the US$ denominated current
account with a related party.

For the company with INR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2022, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against INR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$6,501,000 (2021:
HK$4,343,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of the US$ denominated current
account with a related party.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The income and operating cash flows of the
Group and the Company are both substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Both the Group and the Company have
no significant interest-bearing assets, except for
deposits placed with banks.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rates on
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$10,309,000 (2021:
HK$13,058,000) higher/lower respectively, due
to higher/lower interest income earned on the
deposits.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(iij) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022, there was no
outstanding interest-bearing borrowing in the
Group's consolidated balance sheet (2021:
same).

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost, fund investment at
FVPL, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of fund investment at FVPL
(Note 17), other financial assets at amortised
cost (Note 21), trade and bills receivables (Note
21), restricted cash (Note 23) and cash and cash
equivalents (Note 24) represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

@)

Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments.
The Group also has other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amounts of trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted 42.5% (2021: 47.5%) of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.
They accounted for approximately 47.2%
(2021: 49.9%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2022. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods and provision
of services of the Group are subject to the
expected credit loss model. While other financial
assets at amortised cost, bills receivables,
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents are
also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment losses were
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. The Group measures the
expected credit losses on a combination of both
individual and collective basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment losses. As at 31
December 2022, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed receivables
was HK$82,914,000 (2021: HK$87,833,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and loss allowance in
respect of the individually assessed receivables as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

3 HEEBERE®

3.1 MBRAKEZE @
b) EEREE @

(i)

THEERE )
FEURBRTR (&)
BRI B EFEHIEE
E578
HRENEETHHERE®
NWELAREWEEFELES
K 5E B R FE W g Rt st
12 R (E B 5 B /E (@ B
G RIEZZF+Z
B=+—H @75 F
EETZEWBSANEX
B BREE 482,914,000
B (ZTE2Z —F
87,833,000 7T) ©

TREFHR B
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FE Ut 27 T8 B0 B T AR 1 e

BRI R .
As at 31 December

m+ZBA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= o

HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Gross carrying amount RE4AE 82,914 87,833
Loss allowance BREE (82,914) (87,833)
Net carrying amount REFEE - -

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (continued)

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past periods and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed receivables was HK$45,016,000 (2021:
HK$50,315,000) based on the weighted average
expected credit loss rate of 1.88% (2021:
2.37%).

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as net reversal of impairment losses/(impairment
losses) on financial assets in the consolidated
income statement. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, bills
receivables and other financial assets at amortised
cost

There is no material loss allowance for cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost as at
31 December 2022 (2021: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$3,160,238,000 (2021:
HK$3,532,954,000) that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2022, no banking facilities were
available to the Group (2021: same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

()

b

3 HEEBERE®
HERAKREE @

3.1

Liquidity risk (continued) (0 FEELEE &
The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative TRIBBRSHARG THBEE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping BHFNBHBENDT BEAER
based on the remaining period at the end of the HIETTESMBENEIERH
reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The ZEFHAR] c FTERAEEN S
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual EAGHRMIRREERE-H
undiscounted cash flows. Certain balances due within RITRENEERTR BN+
12 months equal their carrying values as the impact of BARNEENE TEREER
discounting is not significant. HiREBE-
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
MR- —ELfF EEME Hast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHIT TR FET

At 31 December 2022 RZIE_”“H#+”"A=+—H
Trade payables FE{TERR 1,699,530 - - 1,699,530
Other payables and accruals E (TR FE 5t 30 TE 195,260 1,085 - 196,345
Lease liabilities HE&E 24,736 36,163 54,828 115,727
Total 4t 1,919,526 37,248 54,828 2,011,602
At 31 December 2021 R-B8_—%+"A=+—H
Trade payables FE(TERR 1,668,823 - - 1,668,823
Other payables and accruals HAnET AR R B st FIE 153,478 1,973 - 155,451
Lease liabilities HEaE 37,701 50,650 64,928 153,279
Total 45t 1,860,002 52,623 64,928 1,977,553
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, repurchase the Company’s shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowings of the Group. Total capital is
calculated as equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus total debt.

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December
2022 and the gearing ratio is not applicable (2021: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation

()

Fair value hierarchy

3.3

The table below analyses the Group’'s financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 by level of valuation techniques used
to measure fair values. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group's financial
assets that are measured at fair values as at 31

December 2022.

b

HERMGEIE @

ATETER

@)

R TEELR
TRAMAERNRZZEZZ

2 —%+Z“HB=+—H
st 8 A FEFT BN EERM
BHRESWNZAFEEARN
TMT R -BREWASIESE
BAFERBBAN=ERE KW
T

HEBEENEERIERE
MIGHRE CREHE) (B
—#R) °

BEERE— RN RE
oo EEN A BN E
sEE (@S SHE
(EEERE) WAL
(@) o

WIRBAIERETHE
HMmEENEENER
B AER B ARBE
BEmAER) (E=MH) -

THREHAEFR -2
+_BA=+—HEAFEF=E
ZEMEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE F2R F3R e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Fund investment at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss BEE8E - - 110,527 110,527
Investment at fair value through BAFESAEMZARZZ
other comprehensive income ®E - - 413 413
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WMBERREE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEM®
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () 2FEER®
The following table presents the Group’s financial TR EAEBHR _E_—F
assets that are measured at fair values as at 31 +ZA=+—HEAFEFE
December 2021. ZEREE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E14R $E24R 534k 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FExT FET
Financial assets SREE
Fund investment at fair value BAFEFAEBRZ - - 124,269 124,269
through profit or loss HeE
Investment at fair value through BRATEFARMEARZZ - - 2,827 2,827
other comprehensive income ®E
There were no transfers of financial assets THREBENMEBEEATFESZR
and liabilities between the fair value hierarchy DEZERERLEER (Z
classifications during the year (2021: same). T —F[ELE)o
(a) Financial instruments in Level 1 (@) F—HRELHMITA
The fair value of financial instruments traded EERBTSEENS®
in active markets (such as publicly traded TE (MMABRRXTZHITE
derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is MRS RE#EFESE) B
based on quoted market prices at the end of the NFE RIBREHARN
reporting period. The quoted market price used THERETE SREE
for financial assets is the current bid price. These FFAEMNmISEREAESR
instruments are included in level 1. HEAB-BEREIAEMA
E—Re
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued)

()

(9]

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

For details of the fair value measurement using
significant unobservable inputs, please refer to
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Valuation processes
A team within the Group's finance department
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

3

HERMGEIE @

3.3 AFEMGE @

() 2FEER®
b) FB_HRzHITA

WIEEBRHIZEEEN
TRMITE WMHBINMTET
B) UEERMEE QT
B UESRAITEED
8B BEROKES
RHNBEMS - ETAM
ANTESTEFFERT
EEXREEBARUERER
BB ABRMIEMAS
ke

) F=AR2HTA
E—ENZEEARBA
HELIFURTEENT
LHEAE AARIA
MAE =M

EREREATTERR
WABBHRTESE
F2REEMBERRMN
5170

(i) 151EFEF
7 &= [ 7 755 80 B9 H A1 — 18 B B
EMM B REMBEMETE
MEEMGE (BESEIRAF
B REEERET ZBBEE
BEOEEYBEER LRNA
FEER LRI GEM
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost
The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying values:

. Other financial assets at amortised cost

o Trade and bills receivables

o Restricted cash

o Cash and cash equivalents
° Trade payables

. Other payables and accruals

. Lease liabilities

3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates (Note 3.1(b)(ii)). The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of the reporting period.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(b) Provision for inventories

(9]

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net
realisable value when there is an objective evidence that
the cost of inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or partially
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost
of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated
costs necessary to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgment is required. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference
will impact the current income tax and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 5 UtA -~ HtgARE M (EiE) Ik

GAINS, NET g 432
The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales AEBTENEREREEETZNL
of E-payment Terminals products, provision of maintenance and MER - REEERLZERINRERS
installation and payment solution services. Revenue, other income ZIRFE -NFEECDHEDBWA -~ EtUg AN
and other (losses)/gains, net recognised during the year are as TEM (B8 WS BEEIT
follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HLEE
2022 2021
g —_=F"—
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT
Revenue KA
Sales of E-payment Terminals products tHE BT Z R IHE D 7,836,695 7,015,249
Provision of services IRERTS 226,007 180,733
8,062,702 7,195,982
Other income H A
Interest income FEUA 28,582 38,036
Government subsidies (note (i) B A B (B EEG) 18,112 34,847
Value-added tax refunds (note (i) IBERIRIR (F5E)) 3,370 10,105
Others HAth 14,851 13,327
64,915 96,315
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (8548) Wk #5i$ %8
Fair value (loss)/gains on investments BT EFAB@Z
at fair value through profit or loss LEZNTFE (BB S IRE (2,178) 43,450
Gain on disposal of an investment accounted HE—BREREARZ
for using the equity method LB W = - 7,009
(2,178) 50,459
Notes: M 5E
()  The amounts mainly represent the Group's entitlement to () Z2EFEHEAEENPEHERAE

government subsidies in relation to sales and research and
development of self-developed software products in the PRC. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to
these government subsidies.

(ii) The amounts mainly represent the Group's entitlement to value- (ii)
added tax refunds from the tax bureaus of the PRC. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
value-added tax refunds.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 SEEH
The management reviews the Group's internal reporting in order EEEERNAEBEANIRSEUAFHERIR
to assess performance and allocate resources. The management THREER EEEREBERATESH
has determined the operating segments based on the internal ERUEHERBATHNRNLREMET
reports reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic EBEPE - AEEFERETETFIZMNE
decisions. The Group is principally engaged in the E-payment MR REBREEERALTERL
Terminals solutions business, and the management considers that EE—XBoME.
the Group operates in one single business segment.
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (excluding REBFERES -HEH (FE B
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), the United States of America (the BERMN FEABAFEZ -EEE
“US") and ltaly. The management assesses the performance of the s AEREERAZEB AWM
Group from a geographic perspective based on the locations of BTG AEBRNKIR
the subsidiaries in which revenues are generated.
The management assesses the performance of the operating BEEREBESBLE RN, (BB st
segments based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/ STEEE D ENRIER -
(loss).
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by REANRDEE DN AERRAKRES
segment is as follows: DWW
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-TZZE+ZH=t+—HLEE
PRC,
excluding Elimination
Hong Kong, and
Macauand  Hong Kong corporate
Taiwan and others us Italy expenses Total
FE (FE
R R KR
aERS  EFERHEM %H X7 rEER kS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER FER FERT FTERT FET TER
Revenue from external customers RESMEE R HWA 661,803 5,883,846 1,073,271 443,782 - 8,062,702
Inter-segment revenue DEEBA 6,212,424 1,679,133 - - (7,891,557) -
Total revenue EEIgN 6874227 7562979  1,073271 443,782 (7,891557) 8,062,702
Segmental earnings/(losses) before interest ~ DEERFIEER RE ER

expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation  #S5E1& R,/ (5518)

("EBITDA"/"(LBITDA)") (TEBITDA 1,/ T(LBITDA) 1) 1,134,417 708,321 (5,866) 60,228 (404,380) 1,492,720
Depreciation (Note 7) 7 (s7) (40,584) (6.728) (8,841) (3,968) - (60,121)
Amortisation (Note 7) B () - (1,826) - (1,431) - (3,257)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) SEICE R/ (5518 1,093,833 699,767 (14,707) 54,829 (404,380) 1,429,342
Finance costs HHER (5,649)
Share of results of investments accounted R E AR REEE

for using the equity method 7,415
Profit before income tax FaPrGH AT A 1,431,108
Income tax expense Frgmms (162,905)
Profit for the year FE&ER 1,268,203
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®

Year ended 31 December 2021
HEZET-E+°A=+-HIEEE

PRC,
excluding Elimination
Hong Kong, and
Macau and Hong Kong corporate
Taiwan and others us Italy expenses Total
FE (B
i i)l
BBk  BERHM E3E BEAF rEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FTERT TER TER
Revenue from external customers REINBEFRIBA 674,039 5,388,845 793,145 339,953 - 7,195,982
Inter-segment revenue DERKRA 4,994,294 603,906 - - (5,598,200) -
Total revenue EION 5,668,333 5,992,751 793,145 339,953 (5,598,200) 7,195,982
Segmental earnings/(losses) before interest A ERFISER RIE ER

expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation 531 Z T/ (858)

("EBITDA"/"(LBITDA)") (TEBITDA /T (LBITDA) 1) 783,805 556,043 (30,852) 41,506 (4,147) 1,346,355
Depreciation (Note 7) e (57) (45,082) (7,029) (8,418) (3,556) - (64,085)
Amortisation (Note 7) iy (fz17) - (2,625) - (1,673) - (4,298)
Segmental operating profit/(oss) HELEET /(B8 738,723 546,389 (39,270) 36,277 (4,147 1,277,972
Finance costs HHER (6,979)
Share of results of investments accounted FEGZRERANRZ REEE

for using the equity method 3,454
Profit before income tax RS AT A 1,274,447
Income tax expense PSR (182,205)
Profit for the year FERT 1,092,242
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and N B2 HF+ZA=1+—HHREE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December ENBEURBE_ZZ-_+ZA
2022 are as follows: —t+—HIEFEFERHEENSTEN T

As at 31 December 2022
RIBZZF+ZA=t+-H
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
hE (B
el
aER) EFEREM £S5 BAR i k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FER FER FER THET
Segment assets NEBEE 7,135,056 5,259,518 1,213,155 297,593 (4,414,993) 9,490,329
Segment liabilities NEaR 2,098,498 2,757,352 1,544,535 238,515 (4,054,421) 2,584,479

136 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRMsE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6 SEEN®

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE-T-ZE+ZHA=t+—HLEE

b

PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand ~ Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (FE
PR
Bk  FEREM E3E] BAR g ‘B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHER FHET TET TET TER
Additions to non-current assets FRBEE (FEESHMIAR
(excluding financial instruments and BIEFMGREE) WARE
deferred income tax assets) 348,644 947 3,566 3,333 - 356,490

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2021 are as follows:

A _E T F+__B=+—HMOEE
ERBBURBE_SE_—F+_A4
—t+—HIEFEEERHEENTEN T

As at 31 December 2021
RZE2_—-#+”-F=+-H

PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (EH-
BMK
BERS  BAREM £S5 BEAF i B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FER TiER FTERT TER TER
Segment assets DEEE 6,548,697 3,587,739 497,778 211,321 (2,024,257) 8,821,278
Segment liabilities nEEE 2,181,376 1,191,298 813,833 133,525 (1,955,310) 2,364,722
Year ended 31 December 2021
HEZZ--—F+A=t+-HIEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (BB
B R
BBk  BEREHM £S5 BEAF i ez
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FTERT TR TET
Additions to non-current assets ERBEE FEESMIAR
(excluding financial instruments and EILFENEE) AR
deferred income tax assets) 384,352 4,300 4,415 5,703 - 398,770
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In 2022, additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions
to property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (2021:
same).

In 2022, revenue of approximately HK$1,994,387,000 (2021:
HK$2,492,679,000) is derived from the largest customer,
representing 24.7% (2021: 34.6%) of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the Hong Kong operating segment (2021:
same); revenue of approximately HK$442,019,000 (2021:
HK$364,535,000) is derived from the second largest customer,
representing 5.5% (2021: 5.1%) of the total revenue, which is
attributable to the US operating segment (2021: same).

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and
Italy.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location, which is
determined by the geographical location in which the assets are
located, are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
w e MR M

SHEEN @

RIZBEZ_F - FRPEENAFETE
@%%% BERREREAEEEN
//J\% ( :_EE . Ht)

ATE T T A#£91,994,387,00058 75

ZE—£:2,492,679,0007T) B
WATDRERAEL » ZE WAL LEW
J\Eﬁ24 7% (ZE " —% :34.6%) W5

BREBEFHPBE(CE—F . HL) -
AE#I442,019,0008 T (S - —4F ¢
364,535,000 70) WA RBE _KE
P ZEWALRKRARNS 5% (ZTEZ—
FI51%) UHEBREEAEXEDE (CE
T—F @k

MATEFRHNENNGEL ZRLKR
BB RERANERB G E -
AEBEBUEFE  PE EBREAA
7y T i3t o

RZBEEMEME DNEERBFERHE
EHINUT -

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—E_-C BT

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

FEREBEE

Non-current assets
PRC, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

Hong Kong and others B REAM
us ESEl
Italy BAF

PR (FEEFREE

***** BERIN) 1,114,734 887,346
141,369 73,249

33,799 38,930

27,413 31,647

1,317,315 1,031,172
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 EMEHESHRX

SPAHEMT HERZ THERKSE
MEEZ (REHRERIFHE IREPES

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses,
administrative expenses and net (reversal of impairment losses)/

impairment losses on financial assets are analysed as follows: BOWMMT
Year ended 31 December
HE+-HA=1+—HILEE
2022 2021
ZEIZF T —F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Costs of inventories sold (Note 20) EXRFEMA (5E20) 4,595,464 4,244,556
Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 20) REFEREE (M5F20) 32,092 15,928
Employee benefit expenses EBEEMAX (BEESWE)

(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (fFz%10) 861,531 845,155
Research and development costs RN 567,141 512,119
Sales commission HEME 203,790 152,852
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BB RZEITE (EE14)

(Note 14) 20,175 20,220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15(b)) EREEERE H5E150) 39,946 43,865
Short-term lease expenses (Note 15(b)) AR EEAR (FsE15(b)) 12,558 9,821
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mEEgHE (PsE16) 3,257 4,298
Remuneration to the Company’s auditor A BIZBENEN &

— Group's annual audit and —AEEFEZ# R EMEA

other audit related services Z BB R Y AR 75 2,500 2,420
— non-audit services — I BUARTS 980 228
Remuneration to other auditors H iz #emil = 806 923
Losses on disposals of property, HEME -BERREN

plant and equipment, net (Note 29(b)) &518 > 7F %8 (M5E29(b)) 448 33
Net (reversal of impairment losses)/ SREEY CREFRBRRLRFEE

impairment losses on financial assets BEFEIR

(Note 21(c)) (F¥5E21(c)) (3.091) 21,580
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NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES 8

The net foreign exchange losses recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
HK$81,317,000 (2021: HK$2,607,000).

SMERESE

BE_T__F+-A=

+—HILEF

ERTHRERBTFEIBOVIINEZTHIES
81,317,000 7t (Z & ——4:2,607,0008

7T) ©
FINANCE COSTS 9 HBEER
Year ended 31 December
BE+_BA=1+—HILEE
2022 2021
TSI T —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 15(b)) HEaEMEER (MFE15(0b)) 5,649 6,661
Others Hth - 318
5,649 6,979
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EERFHESZ (BIEESHE)
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
Year ended 31 December
BE+_BA=1+—HILEE
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Wages and salaries TEKH® 809,436 780,916
Social security and pension costs HERERRIRE A 51,375 50,122
Employee benefit obligation — defined BERNEE - A EEF TS
benefit plans 720 449
Share-based payment expenses 1z &R - 13,668
861,531 845,155
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EEEAHX (BREEEHE) @
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Five highest paid individuals hEmERAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rEEHRE_E__F#+_A=+—H
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 included three TFERERPHATEE=2EE (=
Directors (2021: three) whose emoluments are reflected in the T —F=%) c HMES B R E34D
analysis shown in Note 34. The emoluments payable to the MARMR - REEENGR TMa (ZF
remaining two (2021: two) individuals during the year are as T—F W) ATHESESIUWT
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=+—HALEE
2022 2021
—E-C _=F—

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAET TAET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2 NREYEH 4,578 5,491
Discretionary bonus FIETEAL 13,775 11,457
Pension cost FERY NS BWIN 104 130
Share-based payment expenses BHRZHER - 2,634
18,457 19,712
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B/ AR R
Number of individuals
AE
2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Emolument bands il <2 48 A
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,500,00178 75 —9,000,00078 75 - 1
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,0017 7% —9,500,00078 75 2 -
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 7t — 11,500,000 7T - 1
2 2
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1

FRISIRFZ

Year ended 31 December
BE+_-_BA=+—HILEE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current income tax on profit for the year FE A Z ZBEAFTERR
— China corporate income tax — R ZEPAER 174,080 117,591
- Hong Kong profits tax —&BFER 119,233 94,132
— Overseas profits tax —BINFIEIR 6,660 17,940
Tax incentives for research and development 17 AR B 5 R AR 32 B9 B /BB A B L
expenses available for the subsidiaries MEEANRFEER
incorporated in the PRC (note (a)) (ffz¥(a)) (56,845) (51,923)
(Over)/under provision in prior years, net BEEE (BREkE) BERE
(Note 28) 528 (B95E28) (24) 19,185
Total current income tax EHAFT SRR 4858 243,104 196,925
Deferred income tax (Note 28) IRICFTISR (MT3E28) (80,199) (14,720)
Income tax expense FriEffsz 162,905 182,205

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: same) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended

31 December 2022.

Taxes on overseas profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

thereof.
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1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority relating
to the research and development expenses of the subsidiaries in
the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the Group may claim an
additional tax deduction up to 100% (2021: 75%) of the relevant
research and development expenses incurred in a year approved by
the PRC tax authority.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from
1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law"), companies in the PRC are subject
to income tax of 25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

Pursuant to Caishui 2016 Circular 49 jointly released by the Ministry
of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation, the National
Development and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the PRC and the amendments
of the relevant tax rules and requirements of the eligibility for
the tax incentives, management performed self-assessment for
Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Pax Computer
Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group located in
the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone, on the eligibility for the
tax incentives. Pax Computer Shenzhen was accredited as High
and New Technology Enterprises (“HNTE”) and is entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15%. As such, the applicable corporate
income tax rate of Pax Computer Shenzhen was 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

11 PSP @

M SE

(a)

""‘.:.

AEBURTENKBABTEMNEE
RESTEREIEREERN —IBRIEE
BoRBEAMRKERRIY  ~REEY
FEBIINNRBIENSBEIEZLHD
RSB ENERMNEERMN
100% (ZZ - —% 1 75%) °

BRER_ZEZNF—B—BLEUNFEH

PESIRIZE (TREMSRIZE)) - RE

REJRBIN25%HIFTISHR > FRIFE B
}Eﬁo

REMHIS BERRNFER ERERE
M EEZEGURTETEMEEEE
Bt A3 EIIR20164958 38 5 LU & 48
E%ﬁ?%%ﬂ'&ﬁ?i%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁiﬂ’ﬂr%
O EEEBRAEEMURNRIKCERE
E’J%ﬁ&ﬁ%@iéaﬁr%?&ﬁm GEIN
EBEZ\\j (rgaanfgﬁg/ i”J) Egﬁ}&
BEERETERIG BBTEHF
JEREASMBEECE (MEMA KT
2 WMEBEEMEIS% o FEIL &
EE - _HF+"A=1+—HILFEHR
EEMRINBRACEMSRMRES
15% (ZEZ—F [BL) -
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in
the respective jurisdictions as follows:

11 PSP @

AEEBRFTISIR AT S A B MR IRE R B E A
REEEZEEN S HER SN INEF
MR ERNIERTEANERNT

Year ended 31 December

BE+_-_BA=+—HILEE
2022 2021

=2 _E_—F

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTAET THET

Profit before income tax BRFRSR AT S A

1,431,108 1,274,447

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 2% & B E SR Fir & 4 p9E I pIE B

profits in the respective countries BN ENRIE 204,016 210,625
Income not subject to taxation BEMIRAIULA (2,650) (3,123)
Tax incentives for research and development 74 AR B0 53 110 A% S A9 B /B A B A AT 22

expenses available for the subsidiaries BERNMBER

incorporated in the PRC (56,845) (51,923)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes FARFE T = A eI R AR 2 9,193 3,151
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was  SREERIELEFTIS R AR IEES 18

recognised 8,861 18,654
Withholding tax FENIRIE 464 1,234
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRBERERZRIEEE (110) (1,083)
Effect of change in tax rate on MEEEFHIRIEMSR s E

deferred income tax (Note 28) (Ff¥z%28) - (14,515)
(Oven)/under provision in prior years, net BEFE (BrERE) BERE

(Note 28) PE8 (fsE28) (24) 19,185

162,905 182,205

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.3% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 16.5%). The change is caused
by the change in the profitability mix of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the respective countries.
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

b

12 SRER

(a)

e
BEREXBMNDDEAEATDFEAR
LEREEaMFUERNBEITES
RNt E

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
ZERIZHF T —fF
Profit attributable to the owners of RABFE ARG ER (FET)
the Company (HK$'000) 1,264,675 1,083,774
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B217 & @R INE TS (TA)
in issue (thousand shares) 1,081,258 1,096,118
Basic earnings per share attributable to RABFEANEBEESRERRF
the owners of the Company (HK$ per share) (& 8% 7T) 1.170 0.989

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares for the
period) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

(b)

BERKEKARAR

i3]
SEREITEMNNAEIARBRE
MATAERBEHEMENE BRI
ABEERTEERIVINETIEH
ABRRAE—HABTHENENS
miR-IERE-FEEREMS & H
RITEBREPMNDBENERE
BB UEEARATE (ERE
ANERMMEAANFEIHE BENR
MEBE - B EASAFENRNHEUE
HRRBREETEREDEITN
Rtn BB FEEEK ©
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted (continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company and
the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding assuming the conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares, which was calculated as follows:

12 EREM®

(b) #E @
BE_T-__FR-_T-—F+=
B=+—HLEE SREBEERNT
BEXATEE ARG ENREBR
BMFTEETHEEERMERE
T BB E > SHE A EW
.

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
== BT —F
Profit attributable to the owners of RABFAE ANEHREF (FB7T)
the Company (HK$'000) 1,264,675 1,083,774
Weighted average number of ordinary B 21T @RMEFHE (TR
shares in issue (thousand shares) 1,081,258 1,096,118
Adjustments for share options TEBREELNARE (TR
(thousand shares) 26,674 36,128
Weighted average number of SR SR M BRINE
ordinary shares for diluted FHE (T
earnings per share (thousand shares) 1,107,932 1,132,246
Diluted earnings per share KABFRBEARBGEREERT
attributable to the owners of (BKETT)
the Company (HK$ per share) 1.141 0.957
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13 DIVIDENDS

13 KR

In 2022, an interim dividend of HK$0.17 per ordinary share
(2021: HK$0.12 per ordinary share) was declared, amounting to
approximately HK$183,341,000 (2021: HK$131,636,000). A final
dividend of HK$0.19 per ordinary share for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$0.15 per ordinary share), amounting
to approximately HK$205,165,000 (2021: HK$162,855,000)
(assuming there will be no change in the number of shares in
issue on or before the record date for determining the entitlement
of final dividend), is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the
proposed final dividend payable.

AR T E S AABEERTERES
REEAR01 78T (CE_—F elREE
f%0.127870) » A#49183,341,0008 T (=
=~ —4 :131,636,000557T) © R ERE K
FEFACEZAAEE_S £+
BZ+—RBLEEEZREPRESRZER
0198 T (ZE-_—F : SR EER0.15
H7T) » AH#9205,165,0008 7T (T ——
£F 162,855,000 7T) (RBREBHTRMHE
BERAETEXRPRE ZEAMNCEARN
ZHIEE ) o AR TSR A S BRFE(T
EERHRE -

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
s B —F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared of HK$0.17 BEEIRERZER017ETTHE
(2021: HK$0.12) per ordinary share BRE (CE-—%:0.1287T) 183,341 131,636
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.19 FREBIK0NIBITHEZERR
(2021: HK$0.15) per ordinary share BE(CE-—%:0.15%87T) 205,165 162,855
388,506 294,491
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

148

14 YE- -BEKRSKE

Construction Office
Land and in progress Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings (Note) improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
Tk ERIR HE WAE
&F (Ht5) NEEE  FERRE BERRE HE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER FHET TR TR FHEL TR
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ5-A-H
Cost A 8,554 429,930 17,453 57,907 55,284 11,495 580,623
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Bt ERH{E (7,431) - (10,723) (36,098) (31,486) (9,358) (95,096)
Net book amount REIE 1,123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-E-"E+-BS+-HILEE
Opening net book amount BOREEE 1123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
Additions RE - 336,697 7 9,362 3,117 1,076 350,259
Disposals HE - - (26) (412) (10) - (448)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (7) ) - (3,041) (8,418) (7.767) (938) (20175)
Exchange realignment ERHEE (68) (42,612) (312) (1,006) (1,720) (73) (45,791)
Closing net book amount HRREEE 1,044 724,015 3358 21,335 17,418 2,202 769,372
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZE+ZA=1+-H
Cost B 7,909 724,015 15,779 62,451 53,946 11,826 875,926
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  REHTERBE (6,865) - (12,421) (41,116) (36,528) (9.624) (106,554)
Net book amount REZE 1,044 724,015 3,358 21,335 17,418 2,202 769,372
At 1 January 2021 RZE2-Z-%£-F-B
Cost A 8,452 76,903 17,247 46,542 44,207 11,613 204,964
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ REHTERIBE (7,231) - (7,427) (29,329) (22,627) (9,110) (75,724)
Net book amount REZE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZS-—F+-A=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BRESE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Additions RE - 346,076 24 12,570 10,190 541 369,401
Disposals HE - - - (1) (12) - (33)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (&7) (12) - (3,198) (7,679) (8,401) (930) (20,220)
Exchange realignment ERHEE (86) 6,951 84 (274) M 23 7,139
Closing net book amount HRRmEE 1123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-£+ZA=+-H
Cost B 8,554 429,930 17,453 57,907 55,284 11,495 580,623
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ REHTE R E (7,431) - (10,723) (36,098) (31,486) (9,358) (95,096)
Net book amount RESE 1,123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
Note: B 5%

As at 31 December 2022, the construction in progress represents two
(2021: two) PRC property development projects of the PAX Smart
Terminals Industrial Park in Huizhou City and the PRC headquarters in
Shenzhen City (2021: same). Please refer to Note 31 and the section
headed “Particulars of Properties Under Development” in this annual
report for the contractual commitments and further details in relation to

these development projects.

Depreciation expense of HK$4,809,000 (2021: HK$4,778,000)
has been charged to cost of sales and HK$15,366,000 (2021:
HK$15,442,000) has been charged to administrative expenses.
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to the leases in respect of land use rights,

15 FREEEREEASR
(@) MZEEEARBRREIRBZNIE

ROBEEBBRIITUT R MIE
RRE-MAEME -ITHREBEEZ

office premises, factory and warehouses:

HEBRMITRIE !

As at 31 December

®W+-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FExT
Right-of-use assets ERHESE
Land use rights (note) T ERRE (f5E) 117,068 132,701
Office premises FEYNES Y/ ES 25,150 48,186
Factory and warehouses ITHkERE 88,349 101,590
230,567 282,477
Lease liabilities HEAR
Non-current JERE 65,578 84,648
Current Vit 20,348 31,954
85,926 116,602
Note: MEEE -

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and are held on

leases of between 20 and 50 years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were HK$6,231,000 (2021:

HK$29,369,000).

REBRUNPENIMEREEERS

20 E50%F ©

BHE_Z__F#+_"_A=+—HL
FEMFEREEEMNARES6,231,000
B (ZE Z—4 129,369,000/

7o) °

HERKBHZARAR —ZTF5H
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

150

gkt e

15 FREEEREEERE®

(continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) MEEWTmRETZIEA

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to the leases in respect of land use rights,
office premises, factory and warehouses:

FEWmFRS R E Lt E R
BE-WMAEYME-IHEEEZE
EEMMTIE .

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=Z T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE (1517)
(Note 7)
— Land use rights — TR A 5,453 6,036
— Office premises —MNEYE 26,896 23,667
- Factory and warehouses —TITH&EE 7,597 14,162
39,946 43,865
Expense relating to short-term SIS EATE SRR (H5E7)
leases (Note 7) 12,558 9,821
Interest expense (Note 9) FEER (M:E9) 5,649 6,661

Depreciation expense of HK$4,812,000 (2021:
HK$3,465,000) has been charged to cost of sales,
HK$8,678,000 (2021: HK$20,333,000) has been
charged to selling expenses and HK$26,456,000 (2021:
HK$20,067,000) has been charged to administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was HK$49,974,000 (2021:
HK$50,341,000), including the payment of principal
elements and interest elements of lease liabilities amounting
to HK$31,767,000 (2021: HK$33,859,000) (Note 29(c)) and
HK$5,649,000 (2021: HK$6,661,000) (Note 9) respectively
and the payment of short-term leases of HK$12,558,000
(2021: HK$9,821,000) (Note 7). In addition, a payment for
the addition of land use rights of HK$2,832,000 has been
made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

(9]

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The cost of the land use rights represents the upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 20 to 50 years.

In addition to the land use rights, the Group leases various
office premises, factory and warehouses. Rental contracts
of office premises, factory and warehouses are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 year to 10 years, but may have
extension options as described in (d) below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension options

Extension options are included in the leases of office
premises, factory and warehouses across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations.

15 FREEEREEERE®

(]

(d)

BERKEKARAR
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16

152

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 HELEE

Contractual
customer
Brand relationships
Goodwill names and others Total
BHEFR
HE EiZ RfRREM =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT
At 1 January 2022 R-E--%—HF—H
Cost (D% 108,675 11,492 50,570 170,737
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t #84 & & (94,093) (4,889) (38,846)  (137,828)
Net book amount REFE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-C
+ZB=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRYREFE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
Amortisation (Note 7) iy (57) - (1,064) (2,193) (3,257)
Exchange realignment ERAE (779) (410) (702) (1,891)
Closing net book amount HAREIREFE 13,803 5,129 8,829 27,761
At 31 December 2022 S
+ZA=+—H
Cost (D% 101,159 10,810 47,217 159,186
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t #84 & H & (87,356) (5.681) (38,388)  (131,425)
Net book amount REEE 13,803 5,129 8,829 27,761
At 1 January 2021 WZE-——%—H—H
Cost %N 110,754 12,370 50,065 173,189
Accumulated amortisation and impairment &5t 85 &R(E (95,011) (4,026) (34,188)  (133,225)
Net book amount IREFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_T-—F
+ZHA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HYEREFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
Amortisation (Note 7) #iy (fisx7) - (1,186) (3,112) (4,2998)
Exchange realignment PE R R (1,161) (555) (1,041) (2,757)
Closing net book amount HARARERE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—%
+Z-HB=+—H
Cost %N 108,675 11,492 50,570 170,737
Accumulated amortisation and impairment &5t 85 &R(E (94,093) (4,889) (38,846)  (137,828)
Net book amount IREFE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
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16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation expense of HK$3,257,000 (2021: HK$4,298,000)
has been charged to administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), which represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the relevant goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's goodwill of HK$13,803,000
(2021: HK$14,582,000) is attributable to the acquisition of the
operation in Italy.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on value
in use calculations. The calculations are performed by an external
valuer by using pre-tax cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
Thereafter, the cash flows are extrapolated using the terminal
growth rates not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of
the country in which the CGU operates.

Impairment test for goodwiill arising from the

16

|EEE ®

BHE_ZS_—F+_"_RB=+—0 %8
3,257,000t (ZZE " —4 : 4,298,000
BIT) Bt AITHER -

HRBEENEEAMREELEM (R
EEEEN) B REELEBABRMA
HEEENME AR EETEENESE
EREER-

R_E__F+_A=+—H'K&EH
R 213,803,0008 T (ZE - —4
14,582,00078 7T)2k B N i B A FIBI 275 ©

ReEEEMNAREREBEEREREE
SAEEE st ERBEEEBFHIEND
FHYHAE LA/ EEMFRBRAIER
TREBEANETFSE ILR > HEIRTR
BFfRANRREREIEBBREESL
BUKEMERRNERRFHRER

MBANNEBFREENEHERE

operation in Italy Azt
The key assumptions are as follows: FERRWT !
2022 2021
—®-= -
Pre-tax discount rate ARG IR 25.0% 18.3%
Compound annual growth rate BEFERER 1.2% 1.3%
Terminal growth rate RimIg R 2.0% 2.0%

The recoverable amount of this CGU is calculated based on the
value in use and exceeded its carrying value as at 31 December
2022 (2021: same).

ZRESELBARBEEREESEMS
H Wb cBBEEESEE S -4
+_BE=+—HMEREBE (ZZE_—
F @ADL e
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE 17 BRAFENEZEMEE

As at 31 December

m+ZBA=+—H
2022 2021
- T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHBT
Investments at fair value through BAFEFAEBRZKE
profit or loss 110,527 124,269
Investment at fair value through other AT EFAHEMEENRGE ZKE
comprehensive income 413 2,827
110,940 127,096
Investments at fair value through profit or loss BATESABmZEE

TREVWBE S _FEE-—F
+ZBE=+—HIEFERTBIRINNIE

The following table presents the changes in the unlisted
investments outside Hong Kong for the years ended 31 December

154

2022 and 2021: tHRENES !
Fund Equity
investment investment
HEERE A E
HK’000 HK$'000
TFET FHT
Year ended 31 December 2022 8§E_E_"_F#+-“HA=+—H
WHEE
At 1 January 2022 A B "HF—H—H 124,269 -
Fair value loss on revaluation RIEBRARBNEGRAFEESR
recognised in profit or loss (2,178) -
Distribution ik (2,006) -
Exchange realignment bE 2 sR B (9,558) -
At 31 December 2022 A S F+"HA=+—H 110,527 -
Unrealised loss recognised in the R38R m M RESR A R AL ¥ S AR VA4S AR
profit or loss attributable to ZREIREEIR
balance held at the end of the
reporting period (2,178) -
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZT”_—F+”-H=+—H
WLFE
At 1 January 2021 A E - —F—H—H 104,290 25,830
Fair value gains on revaluation RiEm AN EGL R T EWGE
recognised in profit or loss 16,970 26,480
Disposal (note) HE (5 - (53,371)
Exchange realignment PE R oA E 3,009 1,061
At 31 December 2021 R_ZE_—F+_H=+—H 124,269 -
Unrealised gain recognised in the P18 m N A RN IR S HAR VAR
profit or loss attributable to ZAREIR NG
balance held at the end of the
reporting period 16,970 -
The carrying amounts of the investments are denominated in ZERENREEUARESE

RMB.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

(continued)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

The fair value measurement of the fund investment uses
significant unobservable inputs (level 3) with the application of net
asset value model. There are no changes in valuation technique
during the year (2021: same).

The key unobservable assumption used in the valuation of the
fund investment as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are:

17

BRATEINZEZEREE ®

BRATESABREZIRE @

EERENERERTTHERH A HE
(F=ZM UEREEREREFEHR
NP EHERMIL RN AEEFLEE
(CZE2EZ—F:FLb-
RZIEBE__FR_Z-Z—-—F+°ZH
=t—H EEREGLEMRANEE
TEBERSR

As at 31 December

R+—BA=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022 2021
fis i ELELLS S —®== —E——f
Net asset value(*) N/A N/A N/A
BERE™) iE FER B

* As at 31 December 2022, the Group has determined that the
audited net asset value approximates fair value of the fund
investment after applying a portfolio discount of 10% (2021: same).

* RZE__HF+-_B=+—HEEERE
EEEBREMAGITEI0O%E  KEIZ
EEFERERESKRENATE (T
TZT—F:FL) e
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

156

(continued)

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Note:

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. ("Wonder Pax") (being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited
(“Megahunt”) and an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which,
Wonder Pax agreed to dispose of its entire 3.64% equity interest
in Megahunt to the Purchaser at a consideration of approximately
RMB43,637,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$53,371,000)
(the "Disposal”). A fair value gain of HK$26,480,000 was
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31 December 2021. After the completion of the Disposal
on 28 December 2021, Wonder Pax no longer held any equity
interest in Megahunt.

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax also received a notice of
transfer from Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt
HK") in respect of Megahunt HK's intention to transfer an
aggregate of approximately 20% equity interest in Megahunt
(the "Relevant Interest”) to certain transferees (the “Transfer”).
The Transfer is subject to the right of first refusal where Wonder
Pax shall be entitled to purchase the Relevant Interest (or any
part thereof) on the same terms and conditions as offered by
Megahunt HK to the transferees (the “Right of First Refusal”).
Wonder Pax decided not to exercise the Right of First Refusal.
The non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal was a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with all applicable requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal.

For details of the Disposal and the non-exercise of the Right of

First Refusal, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
15 December 2021.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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BRATEINZEZEREE ®

BAFEFABGEZRE @
B 5E -

RZE-_—F+-_F+HH BERE
B R BRAR (TBEFHE)) (B
RABZMBBEZEWNBAR) ~JKHAEEZE
MBFEM GER) BRAE (TJKAIE
E)HE—2BIE=H (8hH)) TR
NEZRE B BEFTERBUN
43,637,000 A\ B & (18 E 52 4953,371,000
B WREREAAHEERIKAIEE
H2E3.64%KE (THESFE)) - HE
2 —F+__A=+—HILEEE"
26,480,000 Bt N A FE WD BN ER
ANEREE - RZ_BE-_—&F+2A1
“TtHtNHHESEEREBE BETEAL
BEAIKNIEEEARE

RZE-_—F+ "B +HH BERE
TWEAMEFERLE (TKAF
Bl IR B EBRBSE T AEAEEIK
HIBEATN20%KE (AR &
HREEEN (TZEE)) - ZEHESE
SEEERAR HPBEGERERK
HE B IR T AEAE BRI R E 4+
EEARAED (HEEABD) (MELE
B BEOERTATEZELE
B - ATTHZELEERA LTRA
BIUAAEFMATENRER S - AREER
ZATTHEZEAEERET EMRASE
T4AZBERBRE

ERHHEFERIATEEEBEEEN
HE FL2RFAATEMAZT_—F
+TZRA+THEBMAS-
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18

SUBSIDIARIES

18 MERE
B _ER-B_—H+ZF=+—

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2022 and 2021:

Place of incorporation/
establlshment and

Principal activities and

B T2NBARRENT

Particulars of issued and

b

Name ﬁe of Ie}al entlt place of operation %‘:aid,gp/registered capital Interest held
SRETRE,/ N
k2] i B TREBREEMY AMEREE FiistEs
2022 2021
ZECCE —2T-
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products HK$113,125,000 100% 100%
BERRA comgany and provision of related services 113,125,000% 7T
&5 BRAF in Hon Kog .
GEAHEE TR ARHERR
REARRE
Pax Computer Technology The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of HK$380,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (¥) comgany" E-payment Terminals products and 380,000,0007C
Eaauf% %&m( 3] FE BRAR provision of related services in the PRC
BRAH f‘?lﬁﬂ?“&fh BEFERHERK
=it Wﬁﬂﬁ%
Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Development of software and hardware of HK$20,000,000 100% 100%
Co, ltd. (*) - company® E-payment Terminals products and 20,000,000%7¢
BEDENE (R FE BRAR provmon of related services in the PRC
BIRAH TEREmE E?ﬁﬁ s EmBE TR
Bl R EIERS
Pax Technology, Inc. The US, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products Us$1,000 100% 100%
comgany in the US " 1,000% 7T
268 5RAF TXEAHEEFIARKER
Pax Italia S.rl. Italy, limited liability company Development and customising software EUR100,000 70% 70%
BAF BIRATF systems and sales of E- payment 100,000887C
Terminals groducts in Ital
ﬁk?ﬂ FHER I)\mﬂ:% AR
HEE T LTI
CSC Italia S.r.l. (note (a)) Italy, limited habﬂwty company Provision of software systems and EUR100,000 95% 95%
BAF BIRATF E-payment Terminals maintenance and 100,000887C
installation servwces m \taly
EEAFIRHERAR
B fif Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁuéﬁzﬁéﬁﬁ“
Kwang Woo Information & Korea, limited liability company Development, manufacturing and sales of Korean Won ("WON") 4,238,000,000 87% 87%
Communication Co., Ltd. 28 5EAT E-payment Terminals products 4,238,000,00082 ]
in Korea
HRENE EEREEET N
RinEm
Pax Pos Solutions India India, limited I|ab\hty company Sales of E- p%ment Terminals groducts inIndia  INR32,500,000 100% 100%
Private Limited EE BRAR THEHEETZRIRE 32,500,000t
Pax Japan Kabushiki Kaisha Japan, limited liability company ~ Sales of E- p* ment Terminals groducts in Japan  Japanese Yen ("JPY") 50,000,000 100% 100%
Pax Japanth XL 2 4t o BRRARE ERFHEBFXIREER 50,000,000E 7%
Shanghai New Kashuo The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB30,000,000 51% 51%
Information Technology company’ HEEE 30,000,000 A\ R 1%
Company Limited (*) Inote (b)) EP%FE’&E
LR FAEERNARAT
(PzE(b)
* The English names of Pax Computer Shenzhen, Wonder Pax and * AR EEtEREY BEF ENLS
Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Limited (“Shanghai MRREERMARLAR (TLBRR)

Kashuo”) represent the best effort by the management of the
Group in translating their Chinese names as they do not have official

English names.

# Registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

venture).

Registered as limited liability company (domestic and foreign joint

WEEANELH HHEHEE

HAERE

“ A EmEELRE-

" EMBAAEREERE

ER

BERKEKARAR

B FER

BEIMONP X BEHE-

(RS E&ER

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tRa MR

18

19

158

SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18 MIBAE @

The non-controlling interests in respect of Pax ltalia S.r.l., CSC A RBPax Italia S.r.l.~CSC ltalia S.rl.~Kwang

ltalia S.r.l., Kwang Woo Information & Communication Co., Ltd. Woo Information & Communication Co.,

and Shanghai Kashuo are not material. Ltd. 2 BB -RERAVIFIERER L AE Ko

Notes: B 5% -

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group increased (@) MEBEZZE_—F+Z-B=+—HI%F
its shareholding in CSC Italia S.r.l. from 60% to 95% with a B> AREEAEIT794,000 FEERL
consideration of approximately EUR794,000 (equivalent to 7,223,000787T) AR EIGMPRIFFACSC
approximately HK$7,223,000). The Group recognised the decrease Italia S.r.l.BYRREH60%ZE95% ° A
in non-controlling interests of HK$3,431,000 and other reserves of B hE SR IE A s R /3,431,000 7T
HK$3,792,000. K Bt E# R 13,792,0008 7T ©

(b)  InJuly 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered by MNIE—NFLA LB—FEEEE
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for BEERNEARBE(PEARHEMET
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy EWEEIVELETRERE BT LS
Law of the People’s Republic of China. The court concluded the RAMIBEFTREAF  ERN =
bankruptcy proceedings of Shanghai Kashuo in March 2023. The FZARE LB RRANBERF - LE
liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo is still underway. RRNBEREF ETETH

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 REZEARZEE

EQUITY METHOD

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's investments W_E_ _F_E_—F+_A=+—

accounted for using the equity method represent the investments B AEEEEREIARZEEAH

in Shanghai Coshine Software Company Ltd. (“Shanghai BREXRGERAR (TEBMA%I) &

Coshine”) and CPayond GmbH (“CPayond”). They have share CPayond GmbH (TCPayond J) Z & & o #h1

capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly A ZERE@ERAEN THEEBER

by the Group. The country of incorporation, establishment or BeoRBIRI > RIFAMPIBERTAE
registration is also their principal place of business, and the FEEEMB BRI AIErRESR
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of & EREBIEEAIARRE] ©

voting rights held.

Particulars of
Place of incorporation/ issued and
establishment and type of paid up/ Nature of Measurement
Name legal entity registered capital  relationship Interest held method
FEMARIL B I B R BETRBERSE/
k2t EEBRRER HMELHE MENE FrfstEs HERK
2022 2021
ZEIZE Z”-F

Shanghai Coshine The PRC, limited liability RMB13,326,190 Associated 20% 20%  Equity method

company company

LBR% E BRAF 13,326,190 R A UNG ’i%

CPayond Germany, limited liability EUR25,000  Joint venture 50% 50%  Equity method

company

CPayond ZE BRAT 25,000B1 7T AERE Tt %
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19

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 BEZZARZERE ®
EQUITY METHOD (continued)
As at 31 December
m+-ZB=+—H
2022 2021
ZEIZE T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ET FHET
Carrying amount of an individually immaterial —BEENTERNEGE QBN
associated company BREE 13,179 14,114
Carrying amount of an individually immaterial —BEENTERNEE QBN
joint venture BREE 13,637 6,466
26,816 20,580
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—HLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
The Group’s share of results recognised in the REBPNFEERERERZ
consolidated income statement: FEIG2E4E -
— an individually immaterial associated company ~ ——R{ER] A E A HZ A S 168 (1,802)
— an individually immaterial joint venture ——BENFTEANGE AT 7,247 5,256
7,415 3,454
There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to provide HEARAEEN L8R %k KRCPayond
funding relating to the Group’s interests in Shanghai Coshine and MR TN A ERAERHEESS AEE
CPayond. The Group’s interests in Shanghai Coshine and CPayond 7 858 % R CPayond M E I R E A o
are not material.
Shanghai Coshine and CPayond are private companies and there is B S R CPayondBFAA QT HEHD
no quoted market price available for their shares. WA IS RS o
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20 INVENTORIES 20 7§
As at 31 December
®W+=ZBA=+—H
2022 2021
=2 B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials ARt 520,358 579,219
Work in progress THE 324,188 432,060
Finished goods BRL M 1,682,747 1,060,006
2,527,293 2,071,285
The cost of inventories sold amounted to HK$4,595,464,000 BE_E__F#+_-_A=+—HI=E
(2021: HK$4,244,556,000) and the provision for obsolete B EHEFEER44,595,464,0005 T (Z
inventories amounted to HK$32,092,000 (2021: HK$15,928,000) T —4F [ 4,244,556,00087T) REE
were included in cost of sales during the year ended 31 December FEE#32,092,0008 T (ZE - —4F .
2022. 15,928,000/ 7T) EBIEEHE KA ©
21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21 FEWBRFA R FEWN SR R iR i sH Rl A
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST SRRz HithEmE E
As at 31 December
®W+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
=2 B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables (note (a)) FE Y AR = (B 5E(a)) 2,472,895 2,212,587
Amounts due from related parties FE WL BE Bt 5 =R 18
(note (a), Note 32(b)) (M zE(a) ~ FIEE32(b)) - 1,509
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables 38 : FEWRBR R E B (MI5E(0))
(note (c)) (127,930) (138,148)
Trade receivables, net [EUR AR TR — 5 %8 2,344,965 2,075,948
Bills receivables (note (b)) FEURZ I (T5E(b)) 5,403 6,029
Trade and bills receivables fEWBR TR R FE U 248 2,350,368 2,081,977
Other financial assets at amortised cost BEHR AR Hth SR & E 29,869 18,609

2,380,237 2,100,586
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in
the following currencies:

PEUR BR TR B FEUR S 4% Be 4% B S R A
SRz HfthEMEE @

2425 6 5 B A B R P U SR R P2 8
A5 BE 2 LAt 2 BE E ORI (L L T 85
WA -

As at 31 December

R+=ZRA=+—H
2022 2021
—TIFE “T”—

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Us$ E7T
RMB AR
INR ELt
EUR BRIt
HK$ BT
Others Hh

1,585,524 1,562,507
475,944 299,989

127,518 97,547
124,947 95,725
9,095 8,200
57,209 36,618

2,380,237 2,100,586

The fair values of trade and bills receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost approximate their carrying values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security for these receivables
as at 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

ATECCER-E—FE+ At
H » &R TR FE W SR 4B R 42 8 ol A7)
Rz HMEMEEN AT EREREEE
o

RESERNRREERKRBRER L
MR EEUCRIENREE R -2 "~

TTRA=t+—H FAEETELZFEY
FEFAEFERRCEI—F:AD-
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21 FEURBRFR R FEUN Z 45 B 3G S B 2
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued) FERZHMEMEZE @

(a) FEURARTR

(a) Trade receivables

162

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180
days may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis
upon negotiation. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties based on invoice date is as follows:

TEBEBBTFEZEHEANEESRN
TOE180H T E AT > RIEFEA
RERIEREELEEBE180AM
EEH R B FR-IE-—F
+ZRA=+—8 EWER S FEWRE

MIEREZHEANRE DT

B
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C BT —F

HK$"000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Up to 90 days 90H LAY
91 to 180 days 91£180H
181 to 365 days 181E365H
Over 365 days 365HM &

1,241,059 1,501,337
618,902 495,945
437,679 47,562
175,255 169,252

2,472,895 2,214,096

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$24,373,000 (2021:
HK$29,819,000), which represents approximately 2% to
5% (2021: same) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain number of the customers in the PRC that has a
retention period of three to five years (2021: same). As at 31
December 2022, retention money receivables aged over 365
days amounted to HK$23,072,000 (2021: HK$28,204,000).

The Group’s sales are made to several major customers and
there is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and
services to the top five customers constituted approximately
42.5% (2021: 47.5%) of the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2022. They accounted for
approximately 47.2% (2021: 49.9%) of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2022.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RZEZ—H#+=-B=+—H EYK
IR B IEE IR TEIN £ %E24,373,00078
7T (ZZ - —4 129,819,000 7T) »
EEFHEAETELWEREEELE
BEH2%E5% (CE_—F FL) -
EHHEA=ZRF (ZE2_—F:
Bt RZEBEZ—_F+=—/B=+—
EI  FEWFEIN S FEIREBiIB365H 1Y

48%E#423,072,0008 70 (CE - —4&F !
28,204,000/%75) °

REBEDBBRLTEFTRETHE
BEEGEEETHRAE BHE_T - —
FE+"B=+—HBIEEE HEKX
BERHENE BRRRHENRB MG A
EHEWRALNI2 5% (ZB_—F .
47.5%) " EER _E-_—_&F+ =
B=+—HMEWERRAEEREEY
47.2% (ZZFZ—4F 1 49.9%) °
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

=\

===
— -

21 BRI B R IR R B S A

SIRRZ HthERIEE @

(b) Bills receivables (b) FEWERE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity ZiErRria I B AN E B U
periods within six months. IRITER R R
The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as AEBERWERENIRBERNOT
follows:
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—8H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Up to 90 days 90H A 2,933 4,398
91 to 180 days 91£180H 2,470 1,631
5,403 6,029
Provision for impairment of trade receivables (0 FEWERFURERE

(c)

Based on the assessment of the expected credit losses
(refer to Note 3.1(b)), the movement on the provision for
impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

ERNBEHREEEETMG (RMEE
3.1(b)) » FEURERFUR E 5 B 2 U0
™

Year ended 31 December

HE+"_A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—E--fF —T-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FET

At beginning of the year REH 138,148 115,315
Net (reversal of impairment losses)/ FE CRERBERERLEE)

impairment losses for the year BEZFEE (3,091) 21,580

Written off b 67! (752) -

Exchange realignment b 2 SE 2L (6,375) 1,253

At end of the year REXR 127,930 138,148
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22 OTHER ASSETS

164

22 HthEE

As at 31 December

®W+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
ZERIZF T —F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current portion JERBNER
Others Hh 4,744 4,967
Current portion MENER T
Other tax recoverable EhpT U [o]#7 18 60,708 29,131
Prepayments AT RIE 25,661 24,403
Others Hith 2,137 9,656
88,506 63,190
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23 RESTRICTED CASH 23 ZRFIHRE
As at 31 December
W+=ZB=+—H
2022 2021
B %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIIRITER 16,740 22,091
Restricted cash represents bank deposits of the Group which were ZENREEAEEFEFERHEETER
mainly placed as securities for sales of goods to customers (2021: HREBESMERNRTER (CEZ—F:
same). Bl e
As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate on restricted RIE__F#+_"_B=+—H %R
bank deposits was 5.19% (2021: 4.21%) per annum. RITERNERFMERETFES 9% (T
T—F1421%) e
The carrying amounts of restricted cash were denominated in the SZREIRENEEESEUTIEEE:

following currencies:

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—EB-C BT

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTAET TAET

INR ELt 13,979 14,851
us$ E7T - 4,095
RMB AR 2,637 3,013
Others Hh 124 132

16,740 22,091
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

166

gkt e

24 RERREEFEY

As at 31 December

®w+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
=2 B —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREEHEEY 3,160,238 3,532,954

As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
amounting to HK$1,465,459,000 and HK$45,527,000 (2021:
HK$2,458,427,000 and HK$42,136,000) were kept in the PRC
and India, respectively, where the remittance of funds is subject to
foreign exchange control.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

A —

TR THFF+ZH=+—H ' &T&E

ENREAREFEES

LAl E

1,465,459,0007% 7t & 45,527,000 7t

—E—F

2,458,427,0008 5T &

42,136,000 70) IFHUT P E K ENEER
MEMEENNEZTINESH) o

RERREFEBYHNREED AU TIE

HEHE -

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=4+—8H
2022 2021
=2 s —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
RMB AR 1,465,309 2,455,509
Us$ E7T 1,055,539 741,970
HK$ BT 400,391 200,190
EUR BlT 129,471 84,944
JPY Bt 52,771 10,508
INR ELt 45,527 27,291
Others Hith 11,230 12,542
3,160,238 3,532,954

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 were HK$3,160,088,000 (2021:
HK$3,532,662,000).
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION

(a)

25 AR EBRGHE

Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company (@) FTAFRBBITREERZE
Ordinary
Number of shares of
ordinary HK$0.1
shares each
SRmE
0.1 7TH
a8 ZiEhg
Thousand
shares HK$'000
Issued and fully paid ERTRER T FHET
At 1 January 2021 A2 —F—F—H 1,092,837 109,284
Shares repurchased and cancelled RERRRG EIE R ()
during the year (note) (9,561) (956)
Employee share option scheme: EERERESTE
— share options exercised —BITHEERE 9,698 970
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WRZZE-—F+"B=+—HxK
- "_#F#—HF—H 1,092,974 109,298
Shares repurchased and cancelled RERKMEIREKRTH ()
during the year (note) (14,763) (1,476)
Employee share option scheme: EEMRERESTE
— share options exercised —BITEERE 1,484 148
At 31 December 2022 R _F+"H=+—H 1,079,695 107,970
Note: M EE
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company repurchased R&E_ZT__#+_"-_B=+—HLt
a total of 11,092,000 (2021: 13,232,000) ordinary shares on the Stock FEE > RQAT 69,441,000 7T (=
Exchange at approximately HK$69,441,000 (2021: HK$86,960,000), T —14 :86,960,000) T B FT[O
including the aggregate purchase consideration of HK$69,229,000 B&5311,092,0008 (Z&2Z—4&F ¢
(2021: HK$86,631,000) and the related expenses of HK$212,000 13,232,000/) BE@K > EFEER
(2021: HK$329,000). All of the repurchased shares (2021: 9,561,000 R1E#69,229,0008 T (ZTZ—4F
of the repurchased shares) have been cancelled during the year ended 86,631,000 ) REMEMERN

31 December 2022.

212,000 5T (Z & - —4F 329,000
BIT) o FfARIBRHMD (ZE_—%:
9,561,000 EIFEKRMD) ERBE_ZS
_TE+ZBA=Zt+—BLEEERWSE
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 25 PeASREBRGHE @
(a) Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company (a) FTAFBBITREERZE @
(continued)
Note: (continued) MisE - (48)
Details of the ordinary shares repurchased on the Stock Exchange FREHIFAOENSBRFBFOT !

during the year are as follows:

No. of shares

repurchased
EEE ARG Consideration per share
Date of Repurchase LI EH #B sSRAE
Thousand shares Highest HK$ Lowest HK$
Fh& REBTT REET
7 January 2022 S _F—HF+tH 1,800,000 5.47 5.36
13 January 2022 “E22%—HA+=H 1,800,000 5.41 5.33
31 March 2022 B HF=R=+—H 1,177,000 6.45 6.24
7 April 2022 —E-_FMBA+tH 903,000 7.09 6.88
14 April 2022 “EI2FMA+TEA 1,004,000 7.02 6.76
21 April 2022 —E_FBA”"+—H 1,100,000 6.97 6.72
28 April 2022 “ECHFAT+N\H 1,008,000 6.79 6.67
13 May 2022 “E2FAA+=H 1,150,000 6.53 6.32
26 May 2022 TEITFRAAZ+RH 1,150,000 6.31 6.11
Total “ast 11,092,000
In addition, 3,671,000 shares repurchased during the year ended o R ZE_—F+_A=+—HL
31 December 2021 have been cancelled during the year ended 31 FEMNEERN3,671,0008ERE
December 2022. T+ ZB=+T—HBLFERAKRE
4 o
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company

(@)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
approved by the shareholders on 2 May 2019 (the
“Share Option Scheme™) which will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward
eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

On 2 May 2019, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the Share Option Scheme for
the issuance of in aggregate no more than 7.5% in
nominal amount of the total number of shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme,
representing 82,514,550 shares (subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules).

b

25 RATEBRRE @)

(b) #&E2
(@)

BERKEKARAR

EliBARE

rERRE &

FABEF—EBARRNR_-Z
—hEFEREBZA#ENERE
st8) (MEREStE) - FRIFR
TEEHEES] » B RIZIAE 8
BZBAHES T FHARTAE
MR BT

BBt 52 RIR S KSR
CHAEBFHEMNET
WERE2EERRRE RER
ROEENm SARAER
AR ERMNDBEE-

RIE—HAEREB-_H &R
BIEE T AR ST B LI
(NSNS
HEE S TRDBHN BB
7.5% > B182,514,550/% ({878
RIS B IR R B ST
LEHRANERBRE) °
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 25 IRAERLEBRRE @
(b) Share option of the Company (continued) (b) ZTREERE @
(i) Share option movements (i) FERIEEE)
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2022 the year the year the year 2022
RIEZZ RZEZZ
—A—H +-B=+—-H
4 et =k TEE  FRBRESRE FREH FRTHE FERRH  FiEEREZE
(HKS)
(#7)
Directors
Bz
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
ik —E-hE+AZA*
Employees
g8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 36,886,000 - (1,484,000) - 35,402,000
(485t) “E-hE+AZA*
Total 59,886,000 - (1,484,000) - 58,402,000
By
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2021 the year the year the year 2021
QS — RIE-—F
- —HA—A - +ZB=+—H
ez =k 1B FrisEREUE FREL FRITH FERERY  FEBREUE
(HKS)
(&7)
Directors
BZ
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 357 23,000,000 - = - 23,000,000
(48351) “2-AE+AZR*
Employees
g8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 46,584,000 - (9,698,000) - 36,886,000
(451 “E-hE+AZA*
Total 69,584,000 - (9,698,000) - 59,886,000
2
* The share options will be vested to the grantees, * ERERBRRA EF

170

among which 30% of the share options would be
vested on the date of grant, a further 30% of the
share options be vested on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and the remaining 40% of the share
options will be vested on the second anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise period of these share
options shall be 5 years from the date of grant, subject
to the aforesaid vesting period.
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 25 A REERGHE @)
(b) Share option of the Company (continued) (b) ZTREERE @
(i) Share option movements (continued) (i) FBRRIERTEE)
Movements in the number of share options B ARITHENERESRE REE
outstanding and their related weighted average FmErFESTRERERESH U
exercise prices are as follows: N

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2022 2021
B g%
Average Average
exercise exercise
price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)
SHEREN SEREN
ATTEH FERR 1 ALY B
TfEE (F17) T8 (F19)
At 1 January ®n—A—H 3.57 59,886 3.57 69,584
Granted B - - - -
Exercised Bi7fE 3.57 (1,484) 3.57 (9,698)
Lapsed BRXM - - - -
At 31 December R+—B=+—H 3.57 58,402 3.57 59,886
On 2 October 2019, 82,510,000 share options under RZE—HAE+B B 1NE
the Share Option Scheme were granted to certain P& 5+ &ITET82,510,00017 8
directors and employees at an exercise price of BEUTHEESRK3I S7ET
HK$3.57 per share. These options shall expire on 1 BEFETEEREE ZEH
October 2024. During the year ended 31 December KER-_ZZNOF+A—H
2022, no share option was granted, cancelled or HH-HE_SE-__F+_4
lapsed, and a total of 1,484,000 share options =+ —HIEFE > WELME
(2021: 9,698,000 share options) were exercised. The RRREERE LN B
weighted average share price immediately before the & 151,484,000 BB (ZF
share options exercise date was HK$7.60 per share ——%:9,698,00017 BEIZHE) B
(2021: HK$8.90). BT -REBERETEEH

BRI REASERT7.60
Bw (CEZ—F 1 8.90ET) °
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25 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(ii) Share option movements (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share-
based payment expense (2021:

HK$13,668,000) was

25 RRAKRBRE @
(b) ZFREIEARME @

(i) E%‘/!&‘fé%ﬁ@)ﬁ
2+ ZH
> R

RNE=E

=t+—BLEEE

recognised in the consolidated financial statements. NENEBER(ZEZ—F !
13,668,000 7T) x5 M ##R
RS-
As at 31 December 2022, all outstanding options were RZE-_—_F+-B=+—
exercisable (2021: same). B AABHERTENERES
AlfTE (CEZ—F FL)o
26 RESERVES 26 f#fE
Share  Employment
Share Treasury Capital option benefit Other Exchange Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve eamings Total
i ]
RiEE ErR B BREGEE A Rttt SHEGE RaEi gt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn FEn FEn F#r F#r F#r F#r
(note (i) (note (ii))
(GEO) (P
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ_ZEB=t-HLEE
Balance at 1 January 2022 RIE-ZE-R-H&H 1,191,367 (367) (414,978) 172332 (68) (20,119) 122,770 5,326,894 6,377,831
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year EFER - - - - - - - 1264675 1,264,675
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Rth2E (B8) /hE
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEEMEATRBRR
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EENERER - - - - - - (405,651) - (405,651)
Fair value loss on an investment —BRENATEFE - - - - - (2.414) - - (2.418)
Remeasurement of post-employment ERGRERENE
benefit obligation - - - - 548 - - - 548
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year FE2ENE/ (58 48 - - - - 548 (2414 (405,651) 1,264,675 857,158
Transactions with owners HERANRS
Repurchase of the Company’s shares EEEATHRA (68,332) 367 - - - - - - (67,965)
Dividends to the sharefolders of the Company BAEATREZRS - - - - - - - (345,317) (345,317)
Share option scheme BREtd
- share options exercised -BhfEBRE 5,149 - - - - - - - 5,149
Totaltransactions vith owners HEBANRAEE (63,183) 367 - - - - - (345317)  (408.133)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+AZ+-RZER 1,128,184 - (414,978) 172332 480 (22533)  (282881) 6246252 682685
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26 RESERVES (continued)

26 f#E®

b

Share  Employment
Share Treasury Capital option benefit Other Exchange Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve [eserves reserve earnings Total
i
KizE Bk EnfE  BREEE BiEE Rt SNEGE REEF it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn TEn TEn TEn TEn
(note (i) (note i)
(H30) (GO
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HES--E+A=t-HLEE
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-E-F-HziH 1,243,352 - (414,978) 158,664 (355) (16,687) 37,962 4,484,700 5492,658
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year i3l - - - - - - — 1083774 1,083,774
Other comprehensive income Rth2EkE
Exchange differences arising on translation of hERNEATN SRR
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEMEREER - - - - - - 84,808 - 84,808
Fair value gain on an investment -BERENATENE - - - - - 360 - - 360
Remeasurement of post-employment BREENERENHE
benefit obligation - - - - 27 - - - 27
Total comprehensive income for the year FELENERE - - - - 27 360 84808 1083774 1169229
Transactions with owners HEEANRS
Repurchase of the Company’s shares EEALANRG (85,637) (367) - - - - - - (86,004)
Dividends to the shareholders of the Company BAEATREZRE - - - - - - - (241,580) (241,580)
Share option scheme Bt
- value of senvices provided -BRERENEE - - - 13,668 - - - - 13,668
- share options exercised -BiTERE 3,65 - - - - - - - 3365
Acquisition of non-controlling interests i a subsidiary WEREL AR ER - - - - - (3.792) - - (3,792)
Total transactions with owners HEBANR AR (51,985) 367) - 13,668 - (3,792) - (241,580) (284,056)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZEZ-E+2AZ+-BZEH 1,191,367 (367 @497 1733 (63) (20,19) 12770 53684 6377831
Notes: B 5E -
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXG#E
Capital reserve represents the difference between (i) the aggregate BEARAREETMENERE (IR
of the consideration for the acquisitions upon the reorganisation —ZEF_Bt+HHBEHEHMEAR E’J U BB X
completed on 15 February 2010; and (ii) the aggregate of the share BHERE RNV LB BEEEBNHBA

(i)

capital and share premium of the directly owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

Statutory reserves

The subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC are required to allocate
10% of the companies’ net profit to the statutory reserves fund
until such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase its registered
capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of its registered capital. As at 31 December 2022, retained earnings
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to HK$218,068,000
(2021: HK$214,489,000).

BN A KRN R EEEE

(i) EERE

RABR PRI E QD AR QT M

FB10% DR ELEERHES

BEEE

Bt ER

C BEZ#

HEMEARNS0% - KERHEE

EEREE A AREERS

BEMEMAEZMRES EZ#ETR

&

BN E M EA25% KK T o 1
—E-—4+-A=+—0 8

&

BIEEER#E£218,068,0008 T (T
Z—% 1 214,489,000 7T) ©

.--.
BEIR

SRR ARAT
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27 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 27 FE{IERFR - HthFE(TERFR B FE SRR
ACCRUALS 15
As at 31 December
®R+=-—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-- TET—F

HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET

Trade payables (note (a)) FE {3 BR 7R (Fff5%(a))
Trade payables FEATAR TR 1,698,893 1,632,677
Amounts due to related parties (Note 32(b)) FE 1 BB 75 718 (MEEE32(0)) 637 36,146
1,699,530 1,668,823
Other payables and accruals H (TR R FE 5t TR 1B
Other accrued expenses and payables HMES R RIRR 326,345 304,634
Receipt in advance from customers (note (b)) TEU R R RRIE (Fsk(b)) 298,329 143,618
Other tax payables H A FE IR 13,830 21,794
Payable for construction in progress FESIERE T A2 50,639 34,183
689,143 504,229
(a) Trade payables (a) PFE(TERFR
The ageing analysis of trade payables and amounts due to FE 11 AR =R e A< L B 75 RO RN IE $2 22
related parties based on invoice date is as follows: EHEANREDTAOT
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2022 2021
ZEIZHF T —fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Up to 90 days 90H LAY 1,302,314 1,557,074
91 to 180 days 91THZE180H 376,937 98,300
181 to 365 days 181THZE365H 7,777 125
Over 365 days 365H M & 12,502 13,324
1,699,530 1,668,823
The average credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers rEBEHREEE TN FEHEEER
ranges from 0 to 180 days. NF0E180H ©
(b) Receipt in advance from customers (b) FBWERIE
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December HE_Z-__F+"/FA=+—HL
2022 that was included in the contract liability balance at FE REPYFAGHNEBELERZ
the beginning of the year amounted to HK$90,500,000 BR8N %490,500,0008 7T (&
(2021: HK$60,600,000). The Group expects to deliver the ——%F 160,600,000 7T) c AN EEETE
goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of H—FyURNRERHERUNETHEER
these contract liabilities within one year or less. EHNBEZRBHNEE-
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28 RIEFRISTR
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FIEFMEREEREBBENREAZEEN
the year is as follows: T
Deferred income tax assets REFRSIREE
Year ended 31 December
BETZA=+-ALEE
2022 2021
Z8ZZ “ET-E
Unrealised Unrealised
Lease profit on Lease profit on
Provisions liabilities  inventories Total Provisions liabilities inventories Total
FEAER BERER
e fEak bt fit ik HEER patll &t

HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000
Tn TEn ThR Thn TER TER ThRL THRL

At 1 January ®-A—H 48,931 19,79 2271 96,004 31,119 16,976 25573 73,668
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income statement 5t/ (1R E) FANER 3,140 (4,001) 74,505 73,644 17,053 2672 1012 20,737
Exchange realignment ERBER (4,169) (913) (4,147) (9,229 759 148 692 1,599
At 31 December R®+ZA=+-H 47,902 14,882 97,635 160,419 48,931 19,79 27,277 96,004
Set-off against deferred income tax liabilties BHELREHAR - (13,304) - (13,304) - (18,388) - (18,388)
Deferred income tax assets, R+ZB=+-Af

net at 31 December BEFMEHEETR 47,902 1,578 97,635 147,115 48,931 1408 2,277 71616
Deferred income tax liabilities IREFRISMEE

Year ended 31 December

HETZR=1-HILEE

2022 2021
“ECCE ZEC-k
Revaluation Revaluation
Right-of-use  of intangible Right-of-use  of intangible
asset asset Others Total asset asset Others Total

EREAE RYAEE(R Rt G GAREE EVAEER At at
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
Tn TER Thn Thn ThRL ThnL TR TR

At 1 January ®r-A—H (18,388) (5,237) (6,152) (29,777) (16,102) (6,69) (1,257) (24,055)
Credited/{charged) to the consolidated income statement 3t A/ (I B) & MER 4,220 890 1,445 6,555 (2,145) 1,013 (4,885) (6,017)
Exchange realignment ERBE 864 314 430 1,608 (141) 446 (10) 295
At 31 December R®+ZA=+-H (13,304) (4,033) (4,217 (21,614) (18,388) (5,.237) (6,152) (29,777)
Set-off against deferred income tax assets EHETHEIREE 13,304 - - 13,304 18,388 - - 18,388
Deferred income tax liabilties, R+ZA=+-HK

net at 31 December ERmERaERE - (4,033) (a.217) (8310) - (5.237) (6,152) (11,389)
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

176

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2022,
the Group has unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to HK$460,269,000
(2021: HK$504,671,000). All tax losses will be expired from 2023
to 2042 (2021: 2022 to 2041). The potential deferred income
tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been
recognised will be calculated based on the effective income tax
rates according to prevailing tax laws and regulations in which the
Group operates.

Cai Shui 2008 Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, took effect
on 22 February 2008. Under the circular, dividends declared by
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) to foreign investors out of
their cumulative retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall
be exempt from withholding income tax. For dividends declared
out of profit earned after 1 January 2008, withholding income
tax will be levied on the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10%
unless the foreign investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax
treaty with the PRC that provides for a different withholding tax
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred income tax liabilities
have not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$317,157,000 (2021:
HK$256,037,000), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised an
increase in deferred income tax assets of HK$14,515,000 and an
under provision of current tax of HK$19,439,000 for prior periods
in the consolidated income statement as a result of a change
in applicable income tax rate. On 29 March 2021, the National
Development and Reform Commission amended the relevant tax
rules and requirements of the eligibilities for the tax incentives.
The amendment is effective retrospectively from the year ended
31 December 2020 onwards. The applicable corporate income
tax rate for Pax Computer Shenzhen changed from 10% to 15%
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29 GRAaRERERMEE
STATEMENT
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash (@) PRERIEMAIGMBEKERSHRE
generated from operations HI¥ AR
Year ended 31 December
HE+_BA=+—HLEE
2022 2021
TSI T —fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Profit before income tax BRPT1SA AR A 1,431,108 1,274,447
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income ISYON (28,582) (38,036)
Finance costs A5 E A 5,649 6,979
Share-based payment expenses = EA - 13,668
Depreciation of property, M BERREITE
plant and equipment 20,175 20,220
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 39,946 43,865
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 3,257 4,298
Losses on disposals of property, HEME - -BERIREN
plant and equipment, net B8 258 448 33
Share of results of investments FELR R EARZEEXE
accounted for using the equity method (7,415) (3,454)
Employee benefit obligations EBERANEH - REEFTE
— defined benefit plans 720 449
Net (reversal of impairment losses)/ EHMEEZ CREBERRIFE)
impairment losses on financial assets SR EFE 8 (3,091) 21,580
Fair value loss/(gains) on investments at BATESFARBGZEREY
fair value through profit or loss NEERE (W 2,178 (43,450)
Provision for obsolete inventories [REFEERE 32,092 15,928
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—BEREREARZEE
accounted for using the equity method & - (7,009)
Operating profit before EEESEHF N RN
working capital changes 1,496,485 1,309,518
Increase in trade and bills receivables, FE WS AR T R FE U ZE 4% ~
other financial assets FRBIE AR s/
at amortised cost and other assets BEKETEEEMN (355,033)  (682,440)
Increase in inventories ZE N (643,405) (416,159)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash ZREIRE R, (Em) 3,606 (6,822)
Increase in trade payables, other payables — FE{FERFR ~ ELMFE {FBRRX
and accruals T &St IBIE N 349,501 358,732
Cash generated from operations BEMBRE 851,154 562,829
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29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 29 IRAEREREBRMET @®
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Proceeds from sales of property, plant and (b) HEME. BERZEFRSFIE
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sales RixaRERERT > HEWE K
of property, plant and equipment comprise: B R ENPT S mRIBEIE
Year ended 31 December
HE+-H=+—HILEE
2022 2021
ZRIZF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net book amount REFE 448 33
Losses on disposals of property, HEMZE BEKREEN
plant and equipment, net 518 258 (448) (33)
Proceeds from sales of property, ﬁ’$¢@¥ B R
plant and equipment = EBIFTISRIE - -

() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

() REIBFRIEEEENHER

This section sets out the movement in liabilities arising from KEEHHI T2 S FEMEFEEF
financing activities for each of the years presented. EFafmngs.
Lease
liabilities
HeEa’
HK$'000
FAET
As at 1 January 2022 R _-_&—H—H 116,602
Additions on leases HERE 6,231
Financing cash flows MERERSE (31,767)
Foreign exchange adjustments E AR (5,140)
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__#+”"HB=+—H 85,926
As at 1 January 2021 WZ&E—-—%—HF—H 122,587
Additions on leases HERE 26,537
Financing cash flows MERERS (33,859)
Foreign exchange adjustments b A EE 1,337
As at 31 December 2021 N —%+-"H=+—H 116,602

Interest expense on lease liabilities for the year ended
31 December 2022 amounted to HK$5,649,000 (2021:
HK$6,661,000) are presented as operating cash flows in the
consolidated cash flow statement.

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31 BRKE
Significant capital expenditures contracted for at the end of the RBREARTNEREDIAEBENEKX
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities are as follows: BERMZWT
As at 31 December
w+=B=+—H
2022 2021
g “BT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Property development projects IR RN EEREBEE(MIEE14)
in the PRC (Note 14) 88,525 347,664
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 FAEEAE3RE5S
Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly HW— ALTBERENBEEIMEZEZTH H i
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise ATHAEEMALEET T REERE
significant influence and joint control over the other party in RHHEENEAZERXERES > BIZ
making financial and operating decisions. AIHRDAEZRLEMA TR -
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHRABFHIR S
Except for those disclosed below and elsewhere on the FRTXFIREERGEMBRE
consolidated financial statements, the Group had no other HEMB SN REBREEZS
significant transactions with related parties during the year T+ ZRA=+—HBEEHMEE
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same). HIEITAEARG (CTE - —F
B.L) o

Year ended 31 December

BE+_-_BA=+—HILEE
2022 2021
B —T_—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET

Transactions with subsidiaries of Hi Sun*: RS YNSIESS 7

— Sales of electronic payment products to BB ABHEET
subsidiaries of Hi Sun (note (i) S FES FIEEG)) 153 26,220
— Purchase of raw materials from —BelEzEABEE R
subsidiaries of Hi Sun (note (ii)) (M3 E%(i)) 121,340 118,332
— Rental fee paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun ~ —BAEB2Zz—BHKB AR X
(note (iii)) A= (B EE(ii)) 1,483 1,601
— Service income from a subsidiary of Hi —MAEkEz —ER B A B RE
Sun (note (iv)) A (FF5EGv)) 1,651 -
Transactions with a joint venture: —BEEEREINKZS
— Commission to a joint venture (note (v)) —F'EH—F'Eﬁé%’ EEapgiEs
By E(v)) 18,253 24,315
— Service income from —B—EEaERBENRBIA
a joint venture (note (v)) (FI5E(v)) ) 911 6,314
— Interest income from a loan to a joint —B—HE&aER B —BERN
venture (note (vi) ) B WA (B sEwi)) - 275
* The Company is an associated company of Hi Sun Technology L KpElBEERE (RE) BRA
(China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), whose shares are listed on the 7 (T&M%)) NEE AT KRG
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. AEARRFTEMR Lo
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

180

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)
Notes:

(i) Sales of electronic payment products to subsidiaries of Hi
Sun (the “Sales”) were transacted pursuant to the terms
and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered
into by the Company and Hi Sun on 23 December 2021.
A framework agreement in respect of the Sales (the "Sales
Framework Agreement”) was originally entered into by the
Company and Hi Sun on 19 December 2012. The terms and
conditions of the Sales Framework Agreement were renewed
on 31 December 2015, 5 December 2018 and 23 December
2021 respectively. These transactions were continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of these transactions.

(i) Purchase of raw materials from subsidiaries of Hi Sun (the
"Purchase"”) was transacted pursuant to terms and conditions
set out in the framework agreement entered into by the
Company and Hi Sun on 30 December 2019 (as amended
by two supplemental agreements dated 10 September 2021
and 24 June 2022 respectively). A framework agreement
in respect of the Purchase (the “Purchase Framework
Agreement”) was originally entered into by the Company
and Hi Sun on 21 February 2013. The terms and conditions
of the Purchase Framework Agreement were renewed on 31
December 2013, 30 December 2016 and 30 December 2019.
These transactions were continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these
transactions.

(i) Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun were charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed. These transactions were
de minimis continuing connected transactions exempt from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(iv)  Service income from a subsidiary of Hi Sun were transacted
pursuant to mutually agreed terms and conditions. These
transactions were de minimis connected transactions exempt
from shareholders’ approval and all disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(vy  Commission to and service income from a joint venture were
transacted pursuant to mutually agreed terms and conditions.
These transactions did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(vi)  Interest income from a loan to a joint venture is charged at
an interest rate of EURO Interbank Offer Rate (“EURIBOR")
plus a margin of 5% per annum. These transactions did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

b

32 BAEARS @

(b) Balances with related parties (b) EARAEGTSROAEER
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E- —_EF__—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Balances with subsidiaries of Hi Sun: HEE 2 B AB SRR
— Amounts due from subsidiaries of Hi Sun ~ —FEWS G B AT ZIE
(note (i), Note 21) (B EEG) ~ BiFEE21) - 1,509
— Amounts due to subsidiaries of Hi Sun —ENeBEZHEARRIA
(note (i), Note 27) (B EEG) ~ BiIEE27) - 35,501
Balance with a joint venture: H—EEERRRER
— Amount due to a joint venture —EN—RE&aEARMIE
(note (i), Note 27) (B 5 Gii) ~ BF5E27) 637 645
Notes: MI5E -
(i) As at 31 December 2022, the balances with subsidiaries of Hi (i) MRZEBE-_—_#+"-F=+—H>
Sun are unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of ZENEHB B RABANGERA
60 days (2021: same). EIEH - EBM#B60HEEH
(ZBE-—F 1 F@L) e
(ii) As at 31 December 2022, the balance with a joint venture is iy WNZEZ-_F#+-HA=+—H"
unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of 30 days ZEHGELADNGEHRAREK
(2021: same). F B AR EEHR (%
——F @k
Key management compensation (0 FEEEEME

(9]

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emoluments as disclosed in Note 34.

BHE_S-__FR-_S-_—F+=
B=+—HILFE  ZEEI1EE BN
SHEENEMEECESE -
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 33 ZHARBEBEBREEEHEES
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company rAFEEAER
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E- —_EF__—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
lbES FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REREATNKE 655,172 655,172
Total non-current asset EREBEELE 655,172 655,172
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets Hit e s = 834 679
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS MY B A B FR I8 815,729 815,729
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 334,650 169,481
Total current assets REEEHE 1,151,213 985,889
Total assets BEERE 1,806,385 1,641,061
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners EATFE AELERE
of the Company
Share capital [N 107,970 109,298
Reserves HHE (a) 1,671,778 1,507,284
Total equity g 1,779,748 1,616,582
LIABILITIES &af&
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HAME R FE ST/ IE 26,637 24,479
Total current liabilities and mEBEMEERAELEEE
total liabilities 26,637 24,479
Total equity and liabilities EmkaEiEaE 1,806,385 1,641,061
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 33 ZH®AFEEABREH#EEES ®
THE COMPANY (continued)
(a) Reserves movement of the Company (@) HTLEEEEE
Share
Share Treasury option Retained
premium shares reserve earnings Total
B in it fE EER WBREGHE RERH st

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAT TET TAET TET

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T__H+-_A=+—HLEE

Balance at 1 January 2022 RIZT"HF

—A—Rz#&H 1,191,367 (367) 172,332 143,952 1,507,284
Comprehensive income 2HEWE
Profit for the year FE&T - - - 572,627 572,627

Transactions with owner BE#EFANRZ S
Repurchase of the Company's [ 42T KIRHD

shares (68,332) 367 - - (67,965)
Dividends to the shareholders B4R ATREZ

of the Company = - - - (345,317)  (345,317)
Share option scheme BT

— share options exercised —BITFERE 5,149 - - - 5,149

Balance at 31 December 2022 RZE-"F+_H
=+—HZ#&R 1,128,184 - 172,332 371,262 1,671,778

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZE-_—H+B=+—HLEE

Balance at 1 January 2021 A E &

—B—Hz iR 1,243,352 - 158,664 45,082 1,447,098
Comprehensive income 2HEWE
Profit for the year FEHT] - - - 340,450 340,450

Transactions with owner BEBAZRXS
Repurchase of the Company's [ A B KIAZH

shares (85,637) (367) - - (86,004)
Dividends to the shareholders B4R ATREZ

of the Company S - - - (241,580)  (241,580)
Share option scheme EREsTE

—value of services provided ~ —BEiRMEIRFHIBE - - 13,668 - 13,668

— share options exercised —BITFEERE 33,652 - = = 33,652

Balance at 31 December 2021 R _—F+_H
—t+—HBZ&H% 1,191,367 (367) 172,332 143,952 1,507,284
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HONG KONG LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 is set out below:

3 EFFERER EEATER (B
622%) 5538361 A7 (WEBEEF
HER) RE (56226E) hEH L
TR AR E IR E)

() EFRITHHEHME

RBEE-T__R

—_— =

F+=

B=+—HULEEE ARERES
RATE AR BB E 50T -

For the year ended 31 December 2022
HECSZZE+ZB=t-HLEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES FRAsLAAANEATEY RECHIRLNHE

Emoluments
paid o
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Emoluments with the
Employer's paidor  management
contribution receivable  of the affairs
Estimated toa inrespect of of the
money value retirement accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing of other benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance benefits scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
HESER
LYASE:S
il ABES
HERER ZEMEM
At E# EEHERHE BHEfY e
fig #t HTeA EEZN MHEBEE  RUHBER T fEEE Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Name iz FEn F#n TEr TEn F#r FEn T#n TEn F#r
Executive Directors HnE%
Nie Guoming (Chairman) 2,360 1329 6,000 - - 57 - - 9,746
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) 2,480 1,286 10,000 - - 1 - - 19,888
Li Wenjin 2360 - 9,000 - - 18 - - 1378
7,200 8,615 25,000 - - 197 - - 4,012
Independent Non-Executive BUkaTES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming ERH 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
Wu Min 2 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles ek 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
900 - 1,050 - - - - - 1,950
Total a3t 8,100 8,615 26,050 - - 197 - - 42,962
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 3 EFMERED (FEATEG B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 5538381 A7 (HBEEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. =ER) HE (55622GE) REA L
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION mRARENRE) @

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HONG KONG LISTING RULES)

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EFRTHEZME @
(continued)
The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive REE_ZE-__KZ-Z—F+Z
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2022 B=+—HIHEE ARIBZES
and 2021 is set out below: (continued) FRATBABE B ESIWT @ (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZI-E+-ACt-BIEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
HEAREES FRARARENBAREE) BECIARUNHE

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Emoluments with th